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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited, | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite the downward pressure of the China’s macro
economy, the Group achieved a turnaround result for the 2016
Financial Year. The Group recorded a profit after taxation of
RMB6,151,000 for the 2016 Financial Year comparing with the
loss of RMB2,773,000 for the 2015 Corresponding Period. The
profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the 2016
Financial Year was RMB2,349,000 comparing with the loss of
RMB2,773,000 for the 2015 Corresponding Period.

During 2016 Financial Year, we have completed the acceptance
and transfer of construction land of 300 mu for Zhongfang
Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park, generating revenue of
RMB69,903,000. Upon capital contribution, revenue from
the credit business in Hong Kong substantially grew to
RMB38,467,000.

Faced with the volatilities in the economic landscape, the Group
has timely adjusted the business and investment strategies. During
the year, we substantially disposed of the listed equity investments
and convertible bonds and adjusted the percentage of acquisition
of equity interests in Guangzhou Hai Yue to 20%. At the same
time, we completed the acquisition of 30% equity interests in
Shishi Shen Guo Tou and pre-acquired a commercial premise
comprising the ancillary facilities of Beijing International Zone
Convention Center with the construction area of 2,800 square
metres with the right to use 5,000 square metres of car parks at
the basement level two of the centre. We subscribed 19,800,000
shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative and the Company
held 28,300,000 shares in Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative in
aggregate.

The Company also strengthened the financial strength through
expansion of share capital. During the year, the Company
successfully placed 100,896,000 H-Shares and issued 144,000,000
Domestic Shares to increase the share capital of the Company to
RMB1,469,376,000.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRE®E

During the year, the Group engaged PRO-WIS Risk Advisory
Services Limited to review the procedures, systems and internal
control, by rotation, of the respective operations of the Group.
The Group will take appropriate actions pursuant to the Internal
Control and Risk Management Review Report to rectify the areas
of weakness regarding internal control and risk management.

OUTLOOK

In 2017, adhering to the existing growth strategies, the Group
will broaden its business horizon and optimise resource allocation.
On the one hand, the Group will continue to push ahead the
acceptance and transfer procedures for the construction of
infrastructure in Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park.
On the other hand, given the tightening credit policies in Hong
Kong, the Group will reduce the scale of credit business in Hong
Kong. At the same time, it will also step up the expansion of
and investment in the financial business in Mainland China. In
addition, we shall explore other business opportunities so as to
diversify and create value for our shareholders.

We shall review the capital requirement of our subsidiaries and
our group structure periodically. We will rationalize the capital
structure of respective business segments in accordance with
the growth of the business from time to time and re-organize
the corporate structure so as to streamline the management and
reporting.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our appreciation
to all the shareholders, business partners for their support and
employees for their commitment and hard work. With their
continued support, we shall build a strong foundation for the
growth and expansions in the coming years.

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

27 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year
amounted to RMB108,370,000 (2015 Corresponding Period:
RMB311,400,000), representing a very significant decrease of
approximately 65.2% as compared with the 2015 Corresponding
Period. The substantial decrease in revenue is primarily due to
the decrease in revenue generated from the construction of
infrastructure and development of properties in the PRC despite
the increase in the revenue from credit business segment.

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group has completed the
acceptance and transfer of 300 mu (2015 Corresponding Period:
1,400 mu) construction land of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing
Nan Industrial Park Project and recorded the revenue for 2016
Financial Year of RMB69,903,000 (2015 Corresponding Period:
RMB294,700,000). The acceptance and transfer of the remaining
construction land of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial
Park Project will be completed in the coming years.

Credit business contributed the revenue for the 2016 Financial
Year amounted to RMB38,467,000 (2015 Corresponding Period:
RMB16,026,000). The revenue for credit business increased by
140.0% as compared with that for the 2015 Corresponding
Period following the increase in capital in Chung Hwa Finance.

Profit before tax for the 2016 Financial Year amounted to
RMB12,032,000 (2015 Corresponding Period: RMB3,724,000)
representing an increase in profit before tax of approximately
223.1% over 2015 Corresponding Period.

The Group has disposed of almost all the securities investments,
including convertible bond, in the 2016 Financial Year resulting
a loss of RMB2,215,000 as compared with the loss (including
the fair value changes) for the 2015 Corresponding Period of
RMB16,067,000.

In addition, the result for the 2016 Financial Year is primarily
attributable to (a) an exchange gain of approximately
RMB16,898,000 (2015 Corresponding Period: RMB11,578,000);
(b) the impairment of goodwill of RMB20,000,000 (2015
Corresponding Period: nil) in relation to the Zhongfang Chaozhou
Jing Nan Industrial Park Project; and (c) impairment loss recognised
in respect of other investment amounting to RMB3,561,000 (2015
Corresponding Period: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for the 2016 Financial
Year amounted to RMB5,881,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 9.5% as compared with RMB6,497,000 for the
2015 Corresponding Period. The decrease in income tax expenses
was mainly attributable to the combined tax effect on (i) expenses
not deductible for tax purpose; (ii) loss not recognized for tax
purpose and (iii) income not taxable for tax purpose totaling
RMB4,594,000 (2015 Corresponding Period: RMB5,879,000).

Donations

The Group has not made any donations for the 2016 Financial
Year (2015 Corresponding Period: RMB2,000,000).

Earnings/loss per share

Earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.16 cents comparing
with the loss per share for the 2015 Corresponding Period of
RMBO0.24 cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Infrastructure Construction and Property Development
Business

During the 2016 Financial Year, Chaozhou Jinshan Investment
and Development Company Limited* confirmed the acceptance
of completion and transfer of the 300-mu (2015 Corresponding
Period: 1,400-mu) construction land and recorded revenue of
RMB69,903,000 (2015 Corresponding Period: RMB294,700,000).
Zhongfang Chaozhou has completed the procedures for
acceptance of completion and transfer of accumulated total
3,700-mu. The completion of the procedure of acceptance for the
remaining land is still in progress.

The Group will endeavour the best effort to liaise with the
relevant authorities to complete the procedures for acceptance of
completion and transfer of the remaining completed construction
land. In view of the phase 1 of Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial
Park Project has been basically completed, the completion of the
procedures of acceptance and transfer of the construction land
are in the final stage, the uncertainty on future development
of the project as original planned, an impairment of goodwill
in relation to the Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project of
RMB20,000,000 has been recognised in the 2016 Financial Year
in accordance with the valuation performed by an independent
valuer.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

Credit Business

Following the completion of capital contribution of Chung Hwa
Finance during the 2016 Financial Year, Chung Hwa Finance, a
licensed money lender in Hong Kong, has recorded revenue of
RMB38,467,000 (2015 Corresponding Period: RMB16,026,000)
for the 2016 Financial Year, an increase of 140.0% as the
operation of credit business is in full strength during the 2016
Financial Year.

During the 2016 Financial Year, Chung Hwa Finance has
completed the increase of capital from HK$10,000 to
HK$200,000,000 and the equity interest of the Group in Chung
Hwa Finance had been diluted from 100% to 55%. Details of
the capital contributions to Chung Hwa Finance are set out in the
announcement dated 23 December 2015.

The Group will periodically review the capital requirement of each
business units. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Events
after the Reporting Period” in relation to the capital reductions of
Chung Hwa Finance.

Securities Investments Business

In view of the uncertainty of the stock market, the Group has
disposed of almost all the listed investments, including the
convertible bond issued by the listed company. As a result, a loss
on disposal of held-for-trading investments and convertible bonds
of RMB993,000 and RMB1,141,000 respectively were incurred for
the 2016 Financial Year.

Following the disposals, the held-for-trading investments at 31
December 2016 was RMB85,000 (2015: RMB14,637,000).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group is seeking investments other than the existing
infrastructure construction business in the PRC and the credit
business in Hong Kong. The Group has identified certain projects
with investment potential so as to diversify the business horizon in
order to create value for shareholders.

The Group has entered into certain agreements and letter of
interest, details of which are set out in the paragraphs headed
“Major Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associated
Companies” and “Events after the Reporting Period”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent financial management policy to
manage the working capital. As of 31 December 2016, the
Group's total assets amounted to RMB1,272,402,000 (2015:
RMB923,346,000), representing an increase of 37.8%. Non-
current assets and currents assets as at 31 December 2016 were
RMB516,734,000 (2015: RMB334,997,000) and RMB755,668,000
(2015: RMB588,349,000) respectively. The increase in non-
current assets by RMB181,737,000, being 54.3%, is attributable
to the deposit paid for the acquisition of investments and
properties, details of which are set out in the paragraph headed
“Major Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associate
Companies”. The assets were financed by current liabilities of
RMB151,734,000 (2015: RMB134,624,000) and shareholders’
equity of RMB1,035,401,000 (2015: RMB788,722,000).

As of 31 December 2016, the Group has no bank borrowings. The
Group’s current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 4.98
(2015: 4.37) and gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was 0.12
times (2015: 0.15 times).

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Company have completed
the issuance of 144,000,000 Domestic Shares of RMB1 each
and the placing of 100,896,000 H-Shares at RMB1 each and
accordingly increased the share capital from RMB1,224,480,000
to RMB1,469,376,000 as at 31 December 2016. The Group is
actively pursuing to expand the capital base of the Company.
Details of the enlarging of the share capital are set out in the
paragraph headed ‘Enlarging Share Capital’.
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EEENWED N

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Acquisition of 20% equity interest of Guangzhou Hai Yue
Real Estate Development Company Limited

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement dated 27 July 2015 (the
“Acquisition Agreement”), Shenzhen Cheng He Chuang Jian
Investment and Development Company Limited* (“Cheng He
Chuang Jian") FYITHE BRI EZERBR A F], a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Original Purchaser”), has
conditionally agreed to acquire and Shenzhen Hou Feng Trading
Company Limited* ®JIHELE S HER AT (the “Vendor”) has
conditionally agreed to sell 30% equity interest of Guangzhou Hai
Yue Real Estate Development Company Limited at a consideration
of RMB195,000,000. It is agreed that the acquisition shall
complete within 3 months upon the signing of the acquisition
agreement. On 30 December 2015, the Original Purchaser and
the Vendor has entered into the first supplemental agreement,
pursuant to which both parties have agreed to extend the
completion date of the acquisition to 30 June 2016.

On 3 March 2016, the Original Purchaser, the Vendor and
Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company
Limited* SRR E AR E R AR E EA 7, another wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “New Purchaser”) entered
into a right and obligation transfer agreement (the “Transfer
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Original Purchaser has
agreed to transfer its rights and obligations under the Acquisition
Agreement to the New Purchaser. The New Purchaser has paid
a total of RMB175,000,000, being the payment made by the
Original Purchaser under the Acquisition Agreement, to the
Original Purchaser pursuant to the Transfer Agreement.

On 19 July 2016, The New Purchaser and the Vendor entered
into the second supplemental agreement (the “2nd Supplemental
Agreement”) to amend certain terms and conditions under
the Acquisition Agreement. The amendments include among
other, the change in percentage of equity interests in the Target
Company acquired by the New Purchaser from the Vendor
from 30% to 20%; and the amendment of the consideration to
RMB130,000,000 (the “New Consideration”). Due to the change
in consideration, the additional consideration previous paid by
the New Purchasers of RMB45,000,000 shall be refunded by
the Vendor. As at the end of the reporting period, the Vendor
has refunded RMB22,000,000 to the New Purchaser while the
balance of RMB23,000,000 is still outstanding. In order to ensure
the settlement of the outstanding balance, the Vendor agreed to
pledge 5% equity interest of the Target Company as security.
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On 3 March 2017, all of the conditions precedent under the
Acquisition Agreement have been fulfilled and the completion
took place in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Acquisition Agreement. Following the completion of the
Acquisition, the Company now considered the Target Company
will be treated as the available-for-sale investment of the
Company. (In the announcement dated 3 March 2017, it was
proposed to treat the Target Company as an associate company
of the Group.) Details of which are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 27 July 2015, 19 July 2016, 26 October
2016, 20 December 2016 and 3 March 2017.

Acquisition of 30% equity interest of Shishi Shen Guo Tou
Commercial Property Company Limited

On 11 January 2016, after trading hours, Shenzhen Zhonghe
Chuangjian Investment and Development Company Limited* &
JImRABIEREZEREAR A7), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into the acquisition agreement with the Mr.
Hu Zhen and Mr. Tian Jia Hua (the “Vendors”), pursuant to which
the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell and Zhonghe Chuangjian
conditionally agreed to acquire 30% equity interest of Shishi
Shen Guo Tou Commercial Property Company Limited at a total
consideration of RMB150,000,000. Since all the conditions to
the acquisition agreement have been fulfilled and the acquisition
has been completed on 19 May 2016, the Target Company has
become an associate of the Group and it will be accounted for as
an associate in the financial statements of the Group. Details of
which are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
12 January 2016 and 19 May 2016.

Disposal of the shares and convertible bond of Asia
Resources Holdings Limited

On 21 January 2016, Sichuang Overseas Investment Development
Corporation Limited (“Sichuang Overseas”) entered into transfer
agreement with the Dong Gui Jin and Lu Shang Min (the
“Transferees”) pursuant to which Sichuang Overseas agreed to
transfer the convertible bonds issued by Asia Resources Holdings
Limited with a principle amount of HK$56,160,000 to Transferees
at a consideration of HK$56,160,000. Furthermore, during the
period between 10 August 2015 and 14 January 2016, Sichuang
Overseas has disposed for an aggregate of 106,490,000 Shares
of Asia Resources Holdings Limited on the market in a series of
transactions conducted at the purchase price ranged between
HK$0.39 and HK$0.58 per share with the aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$52,709,000. Details of which is set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 21 January 2016.
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Formation of Joint Venture in the PRC

On 4 February 2016, Shenzhen Tonghe Chuangjian Investment
Development Company Limited* ®IITRASEIEXREEER
R & (LA 5], a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Shenzhen Galaxy Real Estate Development Company Limited*
FINT 2R FHERRZEAR AR has jointly established a
joint venture namely Shenzhen Xingma Hongyun Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd* J#YIH E FEEEMEFRBER AT in
the PRC (the "PRC Joint Venture”) with the registered capital of
RMB10,000,000. The business scope of the PRC Joint Venture
include real estate development and operation in the area with
legally land use rights. During the 2016 Financial Year, the PRC
Joint Venture has not commenced any business or investment yet.
Details is set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
February 2016.

Disposal of the entire issued share capital of Shenzhen
Cheng He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company
Limited

On 15 March 2016, Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment
Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Shen He"), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the disposal
agreement with an independent third party (the “Buyer”),
whereby the Buyer has conditionally agreed to purchase and
Shenzhen Shen He has conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of Cheng He Chuang Jian at the consideration of
RMB44,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The principal activity of Cheng
He Chuang Jian is investment holding. On 26 December 2016,
both parties has agreed to extend the completion date to 30 June
2017. As at the date of this report, the Disposal has not completed
and the amount of RMB24,000,000 represented the refundable
deposit has been received from the Buyer. As the percentage
ratios for the Disposal are less than 5%, the transaction is not
subject to announcement requirement under the Listing Rules.
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Pre-acquisition of property in Beijing PRC

On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang Investment &
Consulting Company Limited* bt FUBEIREAXABR A A, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, being the subscriber
entered into the Pre-Acquisition Agreement with Beijing Zhong
Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited* bt R R EIRBEER A
al, pursuant to which Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property
Limited agreed to sell and Beijing Shen Shang Investment &
Consulting Company Limited agreed to acquire a property
at a total consideration of RMB152,800,000. A property is a
commercial premise with the construction area of 2,800 square
meters (with the right to use 5,000 square meters of car parks at
the basement level two of the Convention Center), being part of
Phase 3 of the ancillary facility project of Beijing International Zone
Convention Center* (it m@ RIS REEE) to be constructed
to be constructed in Beijing Shunyi District Tianzhu Airport
Commercial Zone* (LR ER @KL =H ). Details of
which is set out in the announcement of the Company dated 15
November 2016.

The Share Subscription

On 27 December 2016 (after trading hours), Zhongfang
Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited, being an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has submitted
the share subscription application letter to Chaozhou Rural
Credit Cooperative, pursuant to which Zhongfang Chaozhou has
agreed to apply for 19,800,000 shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit
Cooperative (the “Subscription Shares”) at the consideration of
RMB35,640,000. The Subscription Shares represent approximately
11.55% of the issued share capital of the Issuer as at the date of
the share subscription application letter. Details of which is set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, Zhongfang Chaozhou had 10.9% of
the issued share capital of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative.
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Capital Contribution to Chung Hwa Finance

On 23 December 2015, Kingma Overseas, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the capital contribution
agreement with Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited, an
Independent Third Party, pursuant to which each of Kingma
Overseas and Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited agreed
to make capital contribution (the “Capital Contribution”) of
HK$109,990,000 and HK$90,000,000 respectively to Chung
Hwa Finance. Upon completion of the Capital Contribution,
the share capital of Chung Hwa Finance will be increased to
HK$200,000,000 and Chung Hwa Finance will be owned as to
55% and 45% by Kingma Overseas and Chung Hwa Finance
Holdings Limited respectively. The Capital Contribution has
been completed in the 2016 Financial Year. Chung Hwa Finance
continue to be a subsidiary of the Company and included as a
subsidiary in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 December
2015 for the details of the Capital Contribution.

During the 2016 Financial Year, save as disclosed above, there
was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associate
companies of the Company.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, EMOLUMENTS, TRAINING
SCHEMES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 47
(2015: 47) employees (including Directors of the Company). The
Group has entered into employment contracts with all employees,
and offered employment package according with their positions,
qualifications, experience and ability. During the 2016 Financial
Year, the aggregate salaries and emoluments amounted to
RMB3,627,000 (2015: RMB3,672,000). The Group also provide
benefits to employees, such as contributions to endowment
insurance, basic medical insurance and housing reserve in
accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC.

The Group has not adopted any share option scheme for any of its
senior management or employees.

ASSETS SECURED/PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had not pledged any assets
(2015: totally RMB63,520,000).
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CURRENCY RISKS

Other than those subsidiaries established in Hong Kong, the
revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on
transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional
and reporting currency of the Group which is Renminbi. The
change in the exchange rate of Hong Kong Dollar against
Renminbi will affect the result of the Group. In view of the
appreciation of Hong Kong Dollar against Renminbi, the
reporting currency, an exchange gain of RMB16,898,000 (2015:
corresponding Period: RMB11,578,000) has been recorded in
the results for the 2016 Financial Year. The Group currently
does not have hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure
in future should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2015: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2016, the total capital commitments of the
Group amounted to RMB96,800,000 (2015: RMB114,525,000),
details of which were set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

CSRC Approval on issuance of H-Shares under general
mandate

On 20 January 2017, the Company has received a formal
approval dated 11 January 2017 from China Securities Regulatory
Commission (FEFESFEEEIELZE®) (the “CSRC”) that the
Company is approved to place no more than 121,075,200 new
H-Shares (the “New H-Shares”), under the General Mandate
2016 (the “Placing”). The formal approval will expire after twelve
months upon the date of approval. The Board will proceed the
Placing according to the requirements of formal approval from
the CSRC and the Listing Rules subject to the market conditions.
Details of which is set out in the announcement dated 20 January
2017.
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Proposed Capital Reduction of Chung Hwa Finance

On 21 February 2017, Chung Hwa Finance, an indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has effectively reduced
its share capital from HK$200,000,000 to HK$50,000,000
(the "Capital Reduction”). The reduced share capital will be
returned to the existing shareholders. No share is cancelled upon
completion of the Capital Reduction.

Chung Hwa Finance is remained owned as to 55% by Kingma
Overseas Investment Development Corporation Limited and 45%
by Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited respectively. Details of
which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 23
January 2017.

Signing of the gold investment agreements

On 10 March 2017, Shenzhen Ju Sheng Chuang Jian Investment
and Development Limited* F#YHBRAEILEBEBR AT
("Ju Sheng Chuang Jian"”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into the gold investment agreements with
Shenzhen Fu Yu Man Trading Company Limited* =3I FT &% i
B 58M A7 and Shenzhen Hua Xin Chen Trading Company
Limited* R EBRE S BPRAF] respectively. Pursuant to
the gold investment agreements, Ju Sheng Chuang Jian agreed
to invest in standard gold in Au99.99 fineness with the total
investment amount of RMB54,620,000. The investment period is
nine months and it is agreed that the return for such investment
shall not be less than 3% of the total investment amount. As the
respective percentage ratios for each transaction are less than 5%,
the transaction is not subject to announcement requirement under
the Listing Rules.

Possible Investment in BGA China Technology Company
Limited

On 14 March 2017 (after trading hours), Modern Key International
Limited (“Modern Key”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and BGA China Technology Company Limited 12
FRERL AR AT ("BGA China”) entered into a non-legally
binding letter of intent (the “Letter of Intent”). Pursuant tot he
Letter of Intent, it is proposed that Modern Key will conditionally
acquire not less than 20% equity interest of BGA China (the
“Possible Investment”) subject to certain conditions. BGA China
is a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
engaging in the business development of organic fertilizers. The
Possible Investment is subject to the execution and completion
of the formal agreement, As at the date of this report, no formal
agreement has been executed. Detail of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 March 2017.
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Increase in registered capital of Zhongfang Chaozhou

On 17 March 2017, the Board has passed a resolution to increase
the registered capital of Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment
Development Company Limited from RMB150,000,000 to
RMB400,000,000. The purpose for the capital increase is to
enhance the capital base of Zhongfang Chaozhou as well as
strengthen its infrastructure and construction business in the PRC.
As at the date of this report, the capital increase is still in progress.

Completion of the acquisition of 20% equity interest of Hai
Yue Real Estate

In March 2017, the conditions precedent of the acquisition
agreements in relation to the acquisition of 20% equity interest
in Hai Yue Real Estate have been fulfilled and the completion
took place on 3 March 2017. Details of the completion of the
acquisition are set out in the announcement of the Company date
3 March 2017.

Termination of the acquisition of 28% equity interest of
Shenzhen Hui Ye Micro Lending

In March 2016, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with an independent third party to acquire 28% equity
interest in Shenzhen Hui Ye Micro Lending for a consideration
of RMB42,000,000. As at 31 December 2016, part of the
consideration of RMB32,000,000 has been paid. On 10 March
2017, Company entered into the termination agreement
to terminate the acquisition with immediate effect and the
consideration paid of RMB32,000,000 has been refunded to
Shenzhen Shen He, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group had no
significant investment held for the 2016 Financial Year.
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ENLARGING SHARE CAPITAL

The Company is active pursing to enlarge its share capital so as to
enhance the financial foundation and capital base of the Group.
The Company has raised the share capital through the issue of
Domestic Shares and H-Shares as follow:

On 11 February 2016, the Company completed the placing of
100,896,000 H-Shares at the price of HK$1.19 (approximately
RMB1.00) per share under the General Mandate 2015 and raised
net proceeds of approximately HK$117,640,000. The net proceeds
were used for credit business in Hong Kong and working capital
of the Group. Details of the placing of 100,896,000 H-Shares are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 19 January
and 11 February 2016.

On 23 February 2016, the Company completed the issuance
of 144,000,000 Domestic Shares at the price of RMB1.00
(approximately HK$1.196) per share under the General
Mandate 2015 and raised the net proceed of approximately
RMB143,200,000. The net proceeds were used for as to
approximately RMB130,000,000 for the acquisition of 30%
equity interest of Shishi Shen Guo Tou; as to approximately
RMB 13,000,000 for the working capital for construction and
infrastructure business of Zhongfang Chaozhou and approximately
RMB200,000 for the working capital of the Group. Details of
the issuance of 144,000,000 Domestic Shares are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 18 December 2015 and
25 February 2016.

Following the completion of the placing of H-Shares and issuance
of Domestic Shares as set out in above, the share capital of the
Company increased to RMB1,469,376,000 at the 31 December
2016 comprising of 864,000,000 Domestic Shares of RMB1 each
and 605,376,000 H-Shares of RMB1 each.

In January 2017, the Company has received a formal approval
dated 11 January 2017 (the “Formal Approval”) from the CSRC
that the Company has been approved to place no more than
121,075,200 new H-Shares under the General Mandate 2016 (the
“Placing”). The Formal Approval will expire after twelve months
upon the date of approval. The Board will proceed the Placing
according to the requirements of formal approval from the CSRC
and the Listing Rules subject to the market conditions.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 60, graduated from Shantou Business
School. Since 1986, Mr. Zhang has successively worked as the
deputy manager of Guangdong Haining Paper Packing Company
Limited* (B BEHMEEBFR AT, the vice president of
Hong Kong Hai Yuan Industry Group Limited and chairman of
Beijing Zhongjin Chuangzhan Real Estate Development Company
Limited* t R ¢ EIRFHMERZEHBRAF]). Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in business management, corporate culture
and project and operational planning.

Mr. Huang Zhen Kun, aged 58, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang was re-designated from non-executive
director to executive director of the Company with effect from 3
March 2014. He joined the Group since June 2013. Mr. Huang
graduated from Shenzhen University O&3IIKE%) majoring in
accounting. He is currently the general manager of Zhongfang
Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited (-8 & &1
HEMEARAR]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Huang has extensive experience in corporate governance and
management of real estate projects.

Mr. Deng Xiao Gang, aged 57, is an executive director of the
Company. He joined the Group since June 2013. Mr. Deng
graduated from the Urban Construction and Engineering
Department of Chongging Institute of Architectural and
Engineering (EEEE T2E7) in 1983 with a bachelor degree
in engineering, majoring in water supply and drainage. Mr.
Deng has extensive experience in corporate governance and
management of real estate projects.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Yin Zong Chen, aged 53, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yin graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
(WBERE T2 K2 with a master degree in Architecture and Civil
Engineering Professional. He is a member of the Shenzhen Luohu
District Committee of the CPPCC for the fifth session. He successively
served as the general manager, party branch deputy secretary and
senior engineer of Shenzhen Shenan Enterprise Co., Ltd. from 1997
to 2003, and the director, general manager and senior engineer
of Shenzhen Pan-China Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (“Pan-China
Engineering Group”) from 2003 to 2007. During his term in Pan-
China Engineering Group, he obtained the qualifications of national
first class registered constructor, registered supervision engineer and
registered cost engineer. Mr. Yin served as the general manager
of the contracting division and group vice president in Shenzhen
Construction (Group) Company Limited ORI EZR(EE) AR
~a]) from 2009 to 2012. He has over 30 years' experience in
architecture design, civil engineering and infrastructure construction.

Ms. Li Yu Xiang, aged 58, graduated from Henan Radio &
Television University* (A @ EEBRAEAFZHE) with a
bachelor’s degree in laws in 1988. Since 1981, Ms. Li has served
as the section officer of Bureau of Justice in Kaifeng City, Henan
Province, and the chief lawyer of Henan Rnn He law firm* (i
A EMETLFET). Ms. Liis currently the partner of Guangdong
Shen Hua law firm* (B3 FEEEETSE5FT). Ms. Li has extensive
experience in finance and capital markets, debts and liabilities,
intellectual property rights.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 45. Mr. Chan graduated
from the University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor
of Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer Information
Systems. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of Certified Public Accountants,
Australia and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
investment and financial management. Between September
2001 and December 2015, Mr Chan was an associate director of
Go-To-Asia Investment Limited. Between July 2000 and August
2001, Mr. Chan was an investment manager with Softbank China
Venture Investments Limited. Between April 1995 and June 2000,
he worked at Ernst & Young in Hong Kong and his last position
was a senior associate with the audit and corporate finance
department.

Mr. Chan is currently (i) an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited; (ii) an independent non-executive director
of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited) (Stock
code: 871); Far East Holdings International Limited (Stock code:
36) and Hao Tian Development Group Limited (Stock code: 474),
whose respective securities are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, and (iii) an independent non-executive director
of Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8016), whose
securities are listed on the growth enterprise market of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of the
Company since 12 February 2009 and has resigned on 21 June
2013. Furthermore, Mr. Chan was (i) an independent non-
executive director of Beautiful China Holdings Company Limited
(Stock code: 706) between March 2013 and February 2014
whose respective securities are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, and (i) an independent non-executive director of
Focus Media Network Limited (Stock code: 8112) between April
to November 2015 and L&A International Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 8195) between 25 September 2014 to 3 March 2017,
whose respective securities are listed on the growth enterprise
market of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Yu Guanjian, aged 62, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 2013. Mr. Yu graduated
from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (757 Bf 4%
R E) with a master degree in economics in 1988. Mr. Yu worked
at Shenzhen Branch of Bank of China and Guangzhou office of
China Orient Asset Management Corporation (FEE 5 EEE
BATFEYIFEMNIER). Mr. Yu has extensive experience in
corporate risk management and asset management.

Mr. He Qing Jia, aged 34. Mr. He was graduated from the
University of Electronic Science and Technology with a master
degree in Measurement Technology and Instruments. Since 2011,
Mr. He has worked as the business development manager of
Huawei Technologies Company Limited (# & #1iTER A7) and
the assistant to the general manager of Shenzhen Tong Heng
Micro Technology Company Limited ORI TR = MEHTBR A 7).
Mr. He has extensive experience in corporate management and
managing external relations.

SUPERVISORS:

Mr. Wang Xing Ye, aged 41, holds a master postgraduate
degree. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director of Beijing
Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd., director
of Hebei Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Co., Ltd.,
director of Enraytek Optoelectronics Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., director of Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Interest
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B} F S IETREREEEA
B 2 |]), director of Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment
Co., Ltd., executive director/general manager of Ningbo Liyuantai
Venture Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd., secretary to
the board of director/chairman of union of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited and the chairman of the
Board of Supervisors of the Company. He has profound experience
in investment and financing, asset and business reorganization.

Mr. Chen Jun Feng, aged 34, graduated from Southwest
University of Political Science & Law (PAREIBUEAER) with Bachelor
of Laws. Mr. Chen served as the assistant to the president of
Guangdong Xu Mastery Auction Company Limited (&R BiEZE
HEARRAF]) from November 2008 to January 2010, assistant
to the president and legal manager of Guangzhou Sheng Tong
property Company Limited (B/MNTEEEEHFRAF]) from
February 2010 to February 2012, the director and deputy general
manager of Guangdong Gung Ho Equity Fund Limited (ER L&
RiEE S AR AR]) from March 2013 to October 2015, and the
director of Zhuhai Xinguang Group Co., Ltd. (Zk/&Z K EBK G
BBRAF]). He is currently the supervisor of Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited since 2016. Mr. Chen has extensive
experience in investment and financing, asset and business
reorganization.
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Ms. Huang Yong Jing, aged 39. Ms. Huang was graduated from
Zhangzhou University with a bachelor degree in food engineering.
Since 2002, Ms. Huang has successively worked as the food
inspector in Xiamen Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau
(EFMH AERBRIEZERF), executive manager and deputy
general assistant of Shenzhen Pico Investment and Development
Company Limited CRYITTERKEZEREBRAF]) and the
executive assistant of Shenzhen Anye Property Holdings Limited
(RIIT LT EMEIERR AR A R]). Ms. Huang is currently worked
in the integrated management department of the Company. Ms.
Huang is experienced in business administration and managing
external relations and affairs.

Mr. Zhang Yun Feng, aged 54. Mr. Zhang was graduated
from Anhui University of Finance and Economics (Z#IBIAE K
&) majoring in commodity science. Mr. Zhang has worked as
deputy general manager of the marketing department in the
headquarters of the Kunlun Securities Company Limited (£ & &
ABMR A7), marketing director of Shenzhen sale branch of the
Hong Yuan Securities Company Limited (RRZBHRMDER A
7)) and the general manager of Anhui Xin Tai Yuan Technology
Company Limited (Z#EZ R TR AR A A]). He is currently the
president of Shenzhen Qian Yuan Kun Li Investment Technology
Co., Ltd.(RIYIT ez T AR E R AR A F). Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in capital management.

Mr. Fang Wei Ran, aged 32, graduated from Guangdong Ocean
University with Bachelor of Science in Financial Management. He
previously worked in Huizhou LCY Rubber Company. Mr. Fang
is currently the internal accountant of Zhongfang Chaozhou
Investment Development Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Fang has extensive experience in
accounting practices and cost management.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES:

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung, aged 60, is the Joint Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. Wu is a director of a professional firm
processing corporate secretarial and advisory services. Mr. Wu
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Wu was appointed as the Company Secretary in
May 2013.

Ms. Qian Fang Fang, aged 33, is a medium-level accountant and
the Joint Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Qian graduated
from the Northwest University of professional accounting with a
bachelor’'s degree in management in 2006, and was conferred a
master’s degree in management in 2008. Ms. Qian was appointed
as the supervisor of the Company for the period from 12 February
2012 to 3 March 2014. Ms. Qian was appointed as Joint Company
Secretary on 6 March 2014.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EEgHd

To the Shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the supervisory
committee of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(the “Supervisory Committee”), exercised conscientiously its
authority, safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders and the
Company, followed the principle of trustworthiness, honestly
carried out the duties of supervisors and worked cautiously and
diligently, in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of Hong
Kong and the Articles of Association of the Company for their
accountability to the Shareholders.

During the year, the major work performed by the Supervisory
Committee included the attendance of the Board meetings;
reviewing the report of the Directors and reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board, if any, for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting; strictly and effectively
monitoring whether the policies and decisions made by the
management of the Company had conformed with the state laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company
or safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders. The Supervisory
Committee has also reviewed the performance of the Directors,
general manager and senior management in the daily operation
by various means, and seriously examined the Company’s financial
affairs and its connected transactions. After the examination, the
Supervisory Committee concluded that:

1. the report of the Directors and the reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting are in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association of the Company;

2. the Directors, general manager and other senior
management of the Company have strictly followed
the principles of trustworthiness, worked diligently and
responsibly, and discharged their duties for the best
interest of the Company. The Supervisory Committee has
not discovered that any Directors, general manager and
other senior management of the Company had abused
their powers, damaged the interest of the Company or the
benefits of the shareholders and employees or contravened
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of
the Company;
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EEeaHd

3. the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016, which were audited by
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Company Limited, have truly and
fairly reflected the operating results and financial position
of the Group. The related parties transactions were fair
and reasonable and had not infringed upon the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee takes this opportunity to thank the

Shareholders, Directors and all the employees of the Company for
their supports in the past year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Mr. Wang Xing Ye
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenyang, 27 March 2017
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 55 and 56.

The state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 is set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 57
and 58.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements and consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 59 and 60, respectively.
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Report of the Directors
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2016, calculated under the Company Law of the PRC,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was established,
(2015: RMB Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company and under the laws of the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the financial information of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 171 and 172.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or
agreed to be granted by the Company to any of its Directors,
Supervisors or employees.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang
Mr. Huang Zhen Kun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yin Zong Chen
Ms. Li Yu Xiang
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Guan Jian
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Mr. He Qing Jia

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent to the Group in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, all the Directors shall be appointed at the general
meeting for a term of three years. A director may serve
consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiration of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on pages from 19 to 24.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/
her date of appointment as a Director or Supervisor (or until the
expiration of the term of the current session of the Board or
Supervisory Committee) and thereafter subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice to the
other party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ service contracts disclosed above, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, none of the directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions in
any securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors and
Supervisors as referred to in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2016, save as the Company’s Directors,
supervisors and chief executives, the following corporations and
individuals had interests and/or short positions in the Company’s
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures, which are required to be recorded in the register of
members maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:
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1 Shenzhen Jinma Asset Management Company 600,000,000 Domestic Shares 40.83%
Limited ("Jinma Asset”) 600,000,000/% R & A%

RNTeFEEERBERAR(TFEED

2 Ma Zhong Hong (note 1) 600,000,000 Domestic Shares 40.83%
SER (1) 600,000,0008% A& %

3 Lin Wei Cheng (note 2) 600,000,000 Domestic Shares 40.83%
MERK(H7E2) 600,000,0008% A& %

4 HKSCC Nominees Limited (note 3) 605,376,000 H-Shares (listed shares) 41.10%

ERRREE(REN)BRAB(H723)
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Notes:

1. Ma Zhong Hong is a PRC natural person who holds 90% equity
interests in Jinma Asset. Pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO, Ma
Zhong Hong is also deemed to be interested in the underlying shares
of the Company held by Jinma Asset.

2. Lin Wei Cheng is a PRC natural person who holds 10% equity interests
in Jinma Asset. Pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO, Lin Wei Cheng is
also deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of the Company
held by Jinma Asset.

3. As notified by HKSCC Nominees Limited, as of 31 December 2016, the
following participants of CCASS had interests amounting to 5.00%
or more of the total issued H-Shares of the Company as shown in the
securities accounts in CCASS:

(1) The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as
nominee holds 94,747,740 H-Shares, representing 15.65% of
the issued H-Shares of the Company.

(2) Ever-long Securities Company Limited as nominee holds
73,192,000 H-Shares, representing 12.09% of the issued
H-Shares of the Company.

(3) Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee holds
60,878,000 H-Shares, representing 10.05% of the issued
H-Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company
has not been notified of any interests and/or short positions in
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures of the Company which are required to be recorded
in the register maintained in accordance with section 336 of the
SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentage of sales and purchases for the 2016 Financial Year

attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 65%
— five largest customers combined 78%
Purchases

—the largest supplier 80%

— five largest suppliers combined 100%
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group'’s
five largest customers and suppliers disclosed above.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors and Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2016.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into
by the Group under the applicable accounting standards during
the 2016 Financial Year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the related party transactions disclosed in the note 38
to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules which are subject to the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year
and a discussion of the Group’s future prospects are set in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 6 to 18
and the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 and 5 of this annual
report respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group has been
addressed in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 and 5 and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 6 to 18
of this annual report respectively.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Likely development in the Group’s business

The likely development of the Group is shown in the business
prospect section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and Chairman’s Statement in this annual report.

An analysis using financial key performance indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to
the business of the Group are set out in the “Financial Review”
section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Environmental policies and performance

Environment protection is critical to the long term development
of the Group. The Group places importance in the management
practice so as to minimize waste, maximize efficiencies and reduce
negative impact to the environment.

Relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
others

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment polices on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of requirements of customers and
complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the new enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of the
Group.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES

On 11 February 2016, the placing of 100,896,000 new H-shares
of the Company has been completed and an aggregate of
100,896,000 new H-Shares has been successfully placed to not
less than six placees.

On 18 December 2015, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements with two subscribers respectively
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue an aggregate of 144,000,000 Domestic Shares to the
subscribers. On 23 February 2016, the subscription has been
completed and an aggregate of 144,000,000 Domestic Shares
had been successfully issued to the subscribers.

As at the date of this report, the Articles have been updated
in relation to the issue of H-Shares and Domestic Shares as
mentioned above.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, nor has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events after the reporting period and up to

the date of this report are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statement.
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AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY b =ik ]

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Company Limited (formerly known as =R (BB ) MERERAT (RIETE
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited) retire and, being eligible, (BB SHAMERFTER AR T REER

offer themselves for re-appointment. B BRI FEEBEIZIET -
On behalf of the Board HEEEMH

Zhang Jing Ming sR&4HR

Chairman EE 2

Shenyang, The PRC, 27 March 2017 E e &S - 201743 H27H
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The Board is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics which are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time to comply with the regulatory
requirements, and to improve the in corporate governance
practice.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code of provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout for the 2016 Financial Year, except the
following:

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code requires that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its directors. The Company did not arrange such
insurance cover during the 2016 Financial Year as Directors
considered that the risk of material legal claims against Directors
is minimal. Nevertheless, the Board will review this arrangement
from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances and
arrange for appropriate insurance coverage when necessary.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board of Directors, which currently comprises 8 Directors, is
responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy, and risk
management to protect shareholders interest. Daily operation
and administration delegated by the Board of Directors to the
Executive Directors and the management.

The brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of
this report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group. The composition of the Board is well
balanced as all directors have experience in their field of expertise
with a balance of skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the
operation of the Group.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualifications. In
addition, two non-executive Director are appointed to provide
guidance to the Board.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independence of the management.

The terms of appointment for all the executive Directors,
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are 3 years. All Directors shall be elected and removed by the
shareholders in general meeting according to the Articles of the
Company.
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The policy relating to the Board diversity of the Group sets
up the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to
ensure the Board has the required skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and other qualities of the members of the Board. The
composition of the Board and its committee is regularly reviewed
by considering the benefits of all aspects of diversity. The Board
Diversity Policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Group’s businesses and their statutory
supervision responsibilities as directors of listed companies.
The Company will update directors on the latest development
regarding the Group’s businesses as well as the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, where appropriate. In
addition, all directors are encouraged to participate in training
programmes held by qualified professional people in relation to
the revised code and amendments to the relevant listing rules, so as
to develop and update their knowledge and skills.

During the 2016 Financial Year, all the directors have participated
in proper continuous professional development trainings to update
their knowledge and skills by attending briefings, conferences,
programmes, workshops and seminars as well as by way of further
education and self-study, so as to understand their roles, functions
and responsibilities.

Attendance of individual Director at Board meetings for 2016
Financial Year are as follows:
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Number of meeting TERE 15
Executive Directors: HiTEF -

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming DRIEED 15
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang BB ST 14
Mr. Huang Zhen Kun Egbiibias 15
Non-executive Directors: HBITEE -

Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRESE 15
Ms. Li Yu Xiang FEBFLT 15
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHTESE -

Mr. Yu Guan Jian RERESE 15
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PREGELSTHE 14
Mr. He Qing Jia fAIEELE 15
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All Directors have access to the advice and assistance of the Joint
Company Secretaries in relation to the Board procedures and
corporate governance matters.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded all the matters
discussed by the Board and the matters resolved. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries and are
available for inspection by any Director or Committee Members.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and not exercised by the same
individual. The Chairman is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming and the Chief
Executive Office is Mr. Deng Xiao Gang.

With the support of the Joint Company Secretaries, the Chairman
ensures all the Directors are provided adequate information on
matters discussed in the Board Meeting in a timely manner.

REMUNERATION OF COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 12 February
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The majority of committee members are independent non-
executive Directors and the committee chairman is Mr. He Qing
Jia. Other committee members are Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
and Ms. Li Yu Xiang.

The roles of the remuneration committee include the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension benefits
and compensation payments (including any compensation payable
for loss of office or engagement), and make recommendations to
the Board about the remuneration of the non-executive Directors.

Details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
meetings are as follows:

EREFNEZTERFREEEAFEES
KB ARWENE R KIHE

EXeeRBENEFETdmTBER
NEREE - THBEARWEER - AR
TREFRZBEKEBERM -

ERBRITRAER

RRBEFERITRABE 2B IH - XIFH
Rl —ABE - TEA/RWBEL - THRAH

EREAARENGYT  TRERBE
ERBREEERSHM TR ET 2 M
B o

FHERE

AATR2012F 2 NER I FMEE S
WiEBEEE AT CEmBGERE - X
HNEECKEABYIFNITEE  TES
MEEEE  HMWEZE S8 RMBLEER
TEHRLL -

PR EeNBEERETERATESN
HEHFMES  BREWMNE  BREN R
MED  BEEBRIARME  ANIER
TEENFHRESSRMES -

¥FMZEESRNEHLENT

Number of meetings ERAE 1
Mr. He Qing Jia fAIEESLAE 1
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BREE LR S 0
Ms. Li Yu Xiang FEBFELT 1

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors.
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The remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the nomination committee on 12
February 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. The majority of committee members are
independent non-executive Directors and the committee chairman
is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, the other members include Mr. He Qing
Jia and Mr. Yu Guan Jian.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations on any proposed change to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategies.
Furthermore, the committee will make recommendations to the
Board on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, subject to the
final approval in the general meeting.

Details of the attendance of the nomination committee meetings
are as follow:
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Number of meetings EERE 1
Mr. He Qing Jia B ELEE 1
Mr. Yu Guan Jian REAESEE 1
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRASAA ST A 1
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREAT

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties
of the audit committee are to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal controls system of the Group.
The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. The chairman of the
audit committee is Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan. The audit
committee held four meetings during the 2016 Financial Year.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follow:

BEZZESERNTHRLENT ¢

Number of meetings SERE q
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FREXE 3
Mr. Yu Guan Jian REARESEE 4
Mr. Chan Ming San Jonathan BREGEESEHE 3

The Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2016 and audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the audit committee,
in relation to the compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors without the
presence of executive Directors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor. During the 2016 Financial Year, the Company paid an
aggregate of approximately RMB973,000 to the external auditor
of which auditing services of RMB870,000 and non-audit services
of RMB103,000 respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code for the 2016 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statement showing a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibility to the shareholders on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with the supports of finance
department of the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has applied the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and consistently followed the appropriate accounting
policies and provisions of laws.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system
within the Group. The Group's system of internal control and
risk management includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board is also responsible for reviewing from time to time the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

The Group has engaged PRO-WIS Risk Advisory Services Limited to
provide internal audit functions to review internal control and risk
management system of the Group during the 2016 Financial Year
and reported its findings to the Audit Committee.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control system during the 2016 Financial Year, including
the report of PRO-WIS Risk Advisory Services Limited and the
explanations by the management. Issue raised for improvement
had been identified and appropriate actions were recommended.

An inside information handling policy is in place to enable
the Group to handle inside information. The Board as whole
is responsible for identifying and considering the disclosure
requirements and guidelines regarding inside information.

20165 BHEARREROGERAF

MBRERAIER
RERE

EXAREAKEMBENHRE TREA
RARAEEOPBREK - RREMBRE
BIEF - CERMTEMBREENL ERE
THEE G BRMEARMRE

RS R AR R E

EXerRREARARERENARZR
REELAMEGRR  AEEERREER
NEBESI R - BREATEEEREREIER
ZHER - NI ASEEREXBRE - &
BEEENRERE 2 EMANEIE - #EE
B2 e RBESAREL A RHASE M
BERH A E AN ER - WRERT S
BUADIERE - Z RSB HERHSE(MIEE
H)RBEIEHRBERRHBROER - I
BIE(MIEHER) REBRLZ RGRR KRB
ERIEB B IR ER

EXeNMAETRHENASERREE MR
MERRGHERE - BFEER  BIERE
RAKE G - MEfE R B HRE R
KRB RH -

AEBDR2016FFREEZEBERKE
MAERAFREABETTIE - UEMAAE
ERAEEEE N RS EIR R - WAEBKE
B EERAEMLE

EZSEN2016FMBFEEHAEE 2R
REENMABEERG  BRESERRER
BERABIzHENREEEZHE - 23—
UHRBUE ZTENEREE 2178 -

ARRIEHERNTEERERR - EA%K
BEEHREEARHEE - EFSG L TEEHN
REHABANRBERRERERES -

41




Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRE

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for overall corporate strategy and
monitoring and control of the performance of the Group whereas
the management is responsible for the daily hands on operation.

When the Board delegates its management and administrative
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as to
the powers of the management and the circumstances where,
the management on behalf of the Company shall obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung, engaged from external service provider, was
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company in May
2013. Following the appointment of Ms. Qian Fang Fang as the
Joint Company Secretaries in March 2014, Mr. Wu and Ms Qian
are the Joint Company Secretaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
Jing Ming, the Chairman, is the primary contact for external
company secretary. Each of Mr. Wu and Ms. Qian undertook not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
2016 Financial Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
for investors to understand the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.747kingma.com,
to provide up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, and
corporate governance practices.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
its shareholders, in particular, through AGMs or other general
meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board as well as the
Chairmen of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee will make themselves available at the
AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board, the chairman or the representatives of
each committee together with the external auditor have attended
the annual general meeting to answer any questions raised by the
shareholders.

42 Annual Report 2016

EEINEE

EECBEHFTREOERR BRI
AEFEMERR  MAFEEE@BELEEL
EEEEMEML -

EEFOREEERTRYETHAENE
BETERER CRANREEENRNGT
AHEES|  BRISEEBERRAQAEME
HERPRE S AT LERAHMERGESTS
WHESEETE -

BEAOFIRE

FAARE S 0201345 A F B IMNE RS (e R
BRI ARNRTNARWE - B#EFFrt+
R201453 AEZ T A B A RIWER - 4B
ERBLTAARRNBREARWE - £/F
R EBINERRIMENEZHMEA -
R2016FHBFE - HRERBLTEEE
BT L5/ SRR EEE -

HERMRE

ARARE - BERRZBREBEMBKRE
ERRELREEHAREEBRR LR Z
BEIEREE - NARIMEREAE FER
BREAREMZERZN  EERREERESE
AEHRERERTE -

KA A) 2 #Buk Awww.747kingma.com + LATR
HEARAEBRERER MBEHRPE
ERBHRIEHER -

ARRBHMFEERROFERNR - 555
EBEBRRBF RS NEMBIR G H R R
ETBBYSBESN EFEXF B
ZEERIRF REZBEIFLFMEES
TRBHERRBFASHERREH -

EFERER  EZEQERINRKERINE
BHEMEHFERRBFAE - ARERRE
H AR

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRE

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held in June 2017.
The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders in due course.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on the Group's business in a timely manner, subject
to relevant regulatory requirement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate 10 per cent or
more of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting may,
in accordance with the requirements set out in the Articles of
Association of the Company, make a requisition to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
stating the objective of the meeting. The Board shall as soon as
possible proceed to convene the extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting after receiving the requisition.

SHAREHOLDERS ENQUIRIES

Any enquiries regarding the shareholding of H-Shares, including
the transfer of shares, change of address, loss of certificate etc,
should be sent to the Company’s H-Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Hong Kong Registrar Limited at Rooms 1712-16, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Any enquires relating to the Company should be sent to the
Company’s registered office for the attention of the Chairman of
the Board.

CONSTITUTION DOCUMENTS

Details of the amendments to the Articles are set out in the
section headed ‘Amendments to the Articles’ of the Report of
Directors.

Updated version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company is published on the website of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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/ EM(EB)EHAMEEFAERLR
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
BRLRARRENARAR

(incorporated in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 55 to 170, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
REEitEnR

HRFAEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREF P2 MAERE

Recoverability of a deposit paid for acquisition of
properties

As disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 15 November 2016, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement
with Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited
(“Beijing Zhong Tou"”), as an independent third party
as confirmed by the dircetors the Company, pursuant
to which Beijing Zhong Tou agreed to sell and the
subsidiary agreed to acquire certain properties to be
constructed (“Properties”) for a cash consideration of
RMB152,800,000.

At 31 December 2016, a deposit of RMB110,000,000
was paid to Beijing Zhong Tou, with the remaining
consideration will be payable in 2017 upon certain
conditions to be met (see Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Beijing Zhong Tou has pledged certain properties to
secure the deposit paid. The Group has appointed
an independent valuer to perform a valuation on the
pledged properties as at 31 December 2016.

Given the amount of the deposit paid was significant,
we have identified the recoverability of the deposit paid
as a key audit matter.
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- We obtained the agreements to understand the
terms of the transaction.

- We performed an independent check on the
ownership of the land owned by Beijing Zhong
Tou in which properties to be constructed.

- We have performed site visit to the location of
the land and the pledged properties.

- We have obtained the valuation report related
to the pledged properties and assessed the
reasonableness of the methodologies and
assumption used.

- We have assessed the market value of the
pledged properties performed by an independent
valuer.

- We have evaluated the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities and objectivity.

- We have discussed the status of the construction
process with Beijing Zhong Tou and the
management of the Company and confirmed the
year end balance of deposit paid to Beijing Zhong
Tou by the Group as at 31 December 2016.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
REEitEnR

HRFAEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREF P2 MAERE

Recoverability of a deposit paid for acquisition of
investment/an associate

As at 31 December 2016, including in deposit paid of
RMB153,000,000, there was RMB130,000,000 being
a refundable deposit paid in relation to the acquisition
of 20% of the issued share capital of Guangzhou Hai
Yue Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Hai
Yue Real Estate”) from Shenzhen Hou Feng Trading
Company Limited (the “Vendor”), as an independent
third party as confirmed by the directors of the
Company, as disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Including in deposit paid of RMB153,000,000,
RMB23,000,000 will be refunded to the Group after
the Group decided to reduce the percentage of equity
interests acquired to 20% as disclosed in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the acquisition had not been
completed due to the fact that the related registration
procedure has not been completed and the deposit of
RMB23,000,000 has not been refunded to the Group.

The Vendor has pledged 5% of the equity interest of
Hai Yue Real Estate to the Group as collateral to secure
the outstanding refundable deposit.
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- We obtained and read the related sales and
purchase agreement and the supplementary
agreement in relation to the acquisition of the
20% of the issued share capital of Hai Yue Real
Estate.

- We performed background search of the Vendor
and the Hai Yue Real Estate to see whether there
was evidence to suggest that the Vendor was
related to the Company, any of the directors
of the Company and any of the substantial
shareholders of the Company.

- We discussed with the management of the
Company the facts and circumstances that
led to the postponement of the completion of
the acquisition. Further, we discussed with the
management of the Company regarding whether
there were any obstacles to the completion
of the acquisition and if so the possibility and
procedures as to how the Group plans to deal
with the obstacles.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

FMaEsER

HRFAEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREF P2 MAERE

Recoverability of a deposit paid for acquisition of an
investment/an associate (Continued)

Given the deposit paid was significant and the fact and

circumstances disclosed above, we have identified the
recoverability of the deposit paid as a key audit matter.
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Yue Real Estate.

We reviewed the latest financial position of Hai

- The Company had engaged an independent
valuer to estimate fair value of the equity
interest of Hai Yue Real Estate as at 31
December 2016. We discussed with the valuer
(which we had assessed the competence,
capabilities and objectivity) the reasonableness
on the methodologies and assumptions used in
determining the market value of the properties.

- We sent confirmation to the Vendor to confirm
the receipt of the deposit as at 31 December

2016.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
REEitEnR

HRFAEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREF P2 MAERE

Recoverability of loan and interests receivables

As disclosed in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had loan and interest receivables
of RMB294,470,000 and RMB 10,166,000 respectively as
at 31 December 2016.

Management of the Company concluded that no
impairment was necessary to be made on the loan and
interest receivables of which the impairment assessment
required significant judgment to be made by the
management of the Company and accordingly was
considered as one of the key audit matters.
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- We obtained a list of loan and interest receivables
that were outstanding as at 31 December 2016
from the management of the Company. We had
obtained all the related loan agreements shown
on the list provided by the management of the
Company to identify the key terms of the loans.

- We sent confirmations to the borrowers to
confirm the balances as at 31 December 2016.

- We discussed with the management of the
Company credit policy and impairment policy (i.e.
when and how impairment was determined).
Specifically, with regards to loan and interest
receivable that had past due, we discussed with
the management of the Company why they
believed no impairment was considered necessary
and assessed the recoverable amount based on
the specific facts and circumstances.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRFAEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REEHER EZEREE R R TR S
Impairment of an available-for-sale investment A ERE R E

As disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had an available-for-sale
investment with the carrying amount of R\IB48,390,000
as at 31 December 2016 that represented 10.9%
of the issued share capital of Chaozhou Rural Credit
Cooperative* incorporated under the laws of the PRC
which engaged in banking business.

As disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the investment was carried at cost less
accumulated impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The assessment as to whether there was any
impairment indicator and if so the impairment loss (if
any) was complex and involved a significant degree of
management judgment and hence was considered as
one of the key audit matters.

* English name for identification only
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- We had checked the Group’s ownership of
the 10.9% of the issued shares capital of the
investee.

- We performed background search of the vendor
and the investee to see whether there was
evidence to suggest that the vendor and the
investee were related to the Company, any of
the directors of the Company and any of the
substantial shareholders of the Company.

- We obtained the latest audited financial
statements of the investee. We performed certain
analytical procedures on the financial position
of the investee to assess the reasonableness of
the view of the management of the Company
that there was no impairment indicator on the
investment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
REEitEnR

HRFAEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREF P2 MAERE

Goodwill impairment assessment

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2016, the Group had
goodwill of RMB24,459,000 relating to the acquisition
of entire equity interest of Zhongfang Chaozhou
Investment Development Company Limited (“Zhongfang
Chaozhou”) in 2012. The principal activity of
Zhongfang Chaozhou is the land development project
in Chaozhou.

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the assessment as to whether there was any
impairment indicator and the amount of impairment
loss recognised was complex and involved a significant
degree of management judgment and hence goodwill
of Zhongfang Chaozhou was considered as one of the
key audit areas.
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- We discussed with the management of the
Company to understand the business plan and
development in relation to Zhongfang Chaozhou,
including the progress of the construction in
progress of the land project. We obtained the
profit and cash flow forecast of Zhongfang
Chaozhou approved by the management of the
Company. We discussed with the management
of the Company the key assumptions used in the
preparation of the forecasts.

- The Company had engaged an independent
valuer to determine the value-in-use of
Zhongfang Chaozhou. We had discussed with the
valuer (which we had assessed the competence,
capabilities and objectivity) regarding the
reasonableness on the methodologies and inputs
used in the valuation report. We had performed
substantive testing to the sourced data.

- Finally, we had compared the value set out in the
valuation report.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiality
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: P05256

Suites 313-316, 3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

27 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

S A 42 3£
REBEER
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

Notes

Hiet

Revenue
Sales taxes on turnover
Cost of sales

Gross Profit
Other income
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of interest in an associate
Fair value change on convertible
instruments designated as
financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss
Fair value change on
held-for-trading investments
Loss on disposal of
held-for-trading investments
Loss on disposal of convertible
instruments designated as financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss
Exchange gain, net
Depreciation
Staff costs
Other operating expenses
Share of profit of an associate
Finance cost

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year
Profit (loss) attributable to

— owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)

Dividends

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF

A
EEREHENR

7
HAg A
R BHER
VEREV R
PR — B E R
s R EEE
BERBAAEBERA
BamMEEE
RRHRR T &
MR EEZE)
FIEEBERERAAER

HEREEEIRE

BB
HEEEARARER
FFTABENTIEEER
AR T AMEE

P& 5 U 25 R 58
e

BTKA
H Q&M%
DG —EEE & A AR T

BATERAR

FRIRARF
S BRI

FRRH(HR)
BRI (HER)BER :

—ARATEEA
— IR RS

sEREF(BE)
—EXR(ARED)

—E(ARED)

17}

18

10

11

12

14

15

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TT AREFIT
108,370 311,400
(468) (765)
(78,707) (293,945)
29,195 16,690
538 2,077
(20,000) =
(3,561) =
- 1,084

(30) (7,917)
(993) (9,377)
(1,141) =
16,898 11,578
(145) (172)
(3,627) (3,672)
(5,092) (6,036)
41 =

(51) (531)
12,032 3,724
(5,881) (6,497)
6,151 (2,773)
2,349 (2,773)
3,802 =
6,151 (2,773)
0.16 (0.24)
N/AFREHR N/AiE A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RERBEREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE2016F12A318ILFE

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income,
net of income tax
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) attributable to:
— owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests

56

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARETIT
FERBF(EFR) 6,151 (2,773)
Htt 2@k A - MERFRER
HE gk EF 7 IEE
B2 IHE -
BEEINETF I TS Rk
EAEZERER 1,859 316
FRZ2EKA (BAX)EH 8,010 (2,457)
FR2EKA (B )EE#
BRER :
S VNGIEZ =N 3,733 (2,457)
— FEIE A =S 4,277 -
8,010 (2,457)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2016
#M2016F12A31H

Notes

Hiet

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Interest in an associate
Available-for-sale investments
Convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Deposit paid for acquisition of properties
Deposit paid for acquisition
of investment / an associate
Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS
Properties under development
Loan and interest receivables
Held-for-trading investments
Trade receivables
Deposits and other receivables
Amount due from an associate
Amount due from

a non-controlling interest
Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

2016

EELORBRROARAE

FRDRE

W% - B R

L

R— R A R

A A

Y AR AR EEH A
BB A
TR T A

WA TS

WA A — R
AFFFENOITS

EEREAE

mENRE

BRBYE

FEWE R F S

FIEEERE
FEUAR R

B K H A UK
FEUS — R & A )RR

JE U — % SRR AR
PRI
RITRBRNIRE

DERFHEHENEE

16
17
18
19

20
22

23
34

24
25
26
27

38

38
28

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
1,085 1,231
25,779 45,779
146,480 =
48,390 62,750
- 48,883
110,000 =
185,000 175,000
- 1,354
516,734 334,997
174,150 199,398
304,636 174,557
85 14,637
145,701 186,701
241 900

375 =
49,295 =
30,307 12,156
704,790 588,349
50,878 =
755,668 588,349
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B MR R

At 31 December 2016
#M2016F12A31H

Notes

Hiet

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Other borrowings

Deposit received

Tax liabilities

Liabilities associated with assets classified
as held for sale

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

RENRR
& 1 B3R

Hi R & T &R

HitfEE
BEMET &
BIRAE

ENERFHEHE
MEERBNAE

mENEERE

HREATDAR

RER R

[LEN

it

ZA/NCIE 2PN
FEIGHE

IR e

o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 170 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

30

31
29

29

32

33

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
107,118 107,768
9,627 4,710

- 15,333

24,000 =
4,119 6,813
144,864 134,624
6,870 =
151,734 134,624
603,934 453,725
1,120,668 788,722
1,469,376 1,224,480
(433,975) (435,758)
1,035,401 788,722
85,267 =
1,120,668 788,722

FES5HE170E ARG EISHRE K8
SN2017F3A27 BROERIFERY - W Hh

March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing Ming
REEA

Director

EZ
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Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEREREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

Statutory Non-
Share Share surplus ~ Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve |osses Total interest Total
EERR
k% k&R ifg EREH AR @ FEREG #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETRE  ARETr  ARETr  ARMTn  ARETn  ARETR
(Note 32) (Note ) (Note b)
(Hi#32) (Hita) (i)
At 1 January 2015 H2015€1A18 1,020,400 323,258 104,840 128 (860,695) 587,931 - 587,931
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (2.773) 113 - 11
Other comprehensive income, A ZEMA -
net of income tax TRmER
ltems that may be reclassified AfTRENAEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BRER
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ RH#Z G0 B MR
financial statements of foreign operations ~ E4£ZEXEE = - - 316 - 316 - 316
Total comprehensive income (expense) EREEMARR)
for the year &% - - - 316 2173) (2.457) - (2.457)
Domestic shares issued EETNER 120,000 - - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Heshares issued E%fTHR 84,080 - - - 84,080 - 84,080
Transaction costs attributable to EHREERS
issuance of H-shares A = (832) - - - (832) - (832)
At 31 December 2015 R015E128318 L4080 A6 104800 Wi B6348) 78T - mm
Profit for the year ERE - - - - 2349 2349 3802 6,151
Other comprehensive income, A2 EHA -
net of income tax TRmEH
Items that may be reclassified subsequently ~ ERTEEHHEE
to profit or loss; BRER
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ RHAZ G £HEHEHE
financial statements of foreign operations  Et 7 EH 2% - - - 1384 - 1384 475 1,859
Total comprehensive income for theyear — ERZERALE - - - 1384 2,349 3733 4211 8,010
Domestic shares issued BEfIRER 144,000 - - - - 144,000 = 144,000
H-shares issued BETHIR 100,39 = = = = 100,89 = 100,89
Transaction costs attributable to EIRHEERS
issuance of shares A = (1,950) - - - (1,950) - (1,950)
Capital contribution from non-controlling~~ SEARRE &
interest (Note 33) (Hi#33) - - - - - - 80990 80,990
Transfer b - - 188 - (188) - - -
At 31 December 2016 R2016£128310 1,469,376 320,476 105,028 1,828 (861,307) 1,035,401 85,267 1,120,668
20165 BHEARREROGERAEF 59



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE2016F12A318ILFE

Notes:
(a) Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the value of net assets
acquired and the nominal value of state shares issued as a result of the
incorporation of the Company as a joint stock limited company and
the share premium from the issuance of H-shares.

(b) Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required to set aside 10% of its profit after taxation
prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting regulations to
the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
their respective paid up capital or registered capital, where further
appropriation will at the directors’ recommendation. Such reserve can
be used to reduce any losses incurred or increased the capital.

(c) Distributable reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, distributable reserve shall
be the lower of the accumulated distributable profits determined in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations as stated
in the PRC statutory audited financial statements and the accumulated
distributable profits determined in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Excluded Zhongfang
Chaozhou Investment Development Limited (“Zhongfang Chaozhou”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the Group did not have
any reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2016 and
2015.

Het -

(a)

(b)

(c)

B iR

AR E B EKERNFEEBENARRER
B A7 1A PR X AR SZ M B 1T AO B A AN (B 2
BVESR - AR BITHIRFTE £HRARE -

EEERBARS

REFESESR  AEETEURZET
REHI0%EREERHATES  HEZA
M EINES QO AR BASLEME AR
50% @ E—FTNBRERBEEER - 22K
£ A AR B A B 3% A ) (R B 18 SR8 AN AR
N o

A5 ER Z o O

RIEREAB 2R - AMES IR 2 B ARE
FPEREHER KR PIETE 2 85 R P BAEL
EE R 2 BT A HATOS T EREE S
AR RAEE 2 Rt HO T RE 2
BIRE - BAQREZEWE R R FE M
BERBEARARA(THRERMIN  REER
20164 % 201512 A31 B W E Al L D 2 (%
K
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES EERY
Profit before tax BRELATE A
Adjustments for: HE
Finance cost BIERAR
Bank interest income BATHSHA
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE
Share of profit of an associate G —EE & A REF
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and interest receivables FEWET R SRR ESE
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill IR ERRRERE
Impairment loss recognised in respect of PR — R A AR
interest in an associate R REEE
Compensation income arising from termination R FER SR
of Proposed Acquisition (as defined in Note 21) (E&BHIEE21) EE MBS EIRA
Fair value change on convertible instruments BEREAABEFAER
designed as financial asset at fair value P EER AR T A
through profit or loss HAREES
Fair value change on held-for-trading investments ~ HEBERE AL BEEE)
Loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments HEREEEREFE
Loss on disposal of convertible instruments
designed as financial asset at fair value HEREREARBETABR
through profit or loss M EENARKR T AR ERE
Operating cash flows before EERSRNNEE
movements in working capital HeRE
Decrease in properties under development BRAYERD
Increase in loan and interest receivables P E R R IS8
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables FEMBR R A (32 0n)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits BNFIE - ZE R
and other receivables Hpth EHOR
Decrease in trade payables ERERZR D

Increase (decrease) in other payables and accruals ~— EftfE M FEEEREMOR L)
Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading

investments BEEERAERD (M)
Increase in assets associated with held for sale B RS E R B AL N
Increase in liabilities associated with assets BEABRREEHE

classified as held for sale HEEMR@AN A ELM
Decrease in advanced proceeds received from

a customer Bl—2EPEMAFERD

Cash used in operations XBERBHAE
Income tax paid HEFEHR

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES TREEENRESH

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETT
12,032 3,724
51 531
(116) (75)
145 172
(41) -

- 9
20,000 =
3,561 =
- (2,000)
- (1,084)

30 7,917

993 9,377
1,141 -
37,796 18,571
25,254 261,758
(130,067) (133,894)
41,000 (158,501)
659 32,430
(650) (23,394)
4,917 (748)
13,682 (31,253)
(878) =
6,870 =
- (37,200)
(1,417) (72,231)
(7.433) (4,657)
(8,850) (76,888)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE2016F12A318ILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank interest received

Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

Refund of deposit paid for Proposed Acquisition
(as defined in Note 21)

Compensation income arising from termination of
Proposed Acquisition (as defined in Note 21)

Deposit paid for acquisition of investment

Deposit paid for acquisition of properties

Refund for deposit paid for acquisition of
investment

Deposit received for disposal of a subsidiary

Acquisition of investment in an associate

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Disposal (purchase) of convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in amount due from an associate

Increase in amount due from a minority interest

Net cash inflow from disposal of assets and
liabilities classified as held for sales

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest expense

(Decrease) increase in other borrowings

Proceeds from capital contribution of
non-controlling interest

Proceeds from issue of domestic shares

Proceeds from issue of H-shares

Transaction costs attributable to issuance of shares

Decrease in amount due to ultimate holding
company

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

REED

ERERITHIE

Wi — R R R RT £

RERZUWESAEEERME21)
PR &

R bR B ER(ERRME21)
MmELRFEERA

KRR B MR 2

WREMEM T2

REWEREMNHRIE
ERRHE-RHBR RN
KRR R LR ARE
BENE  BER&E
BEREEERE

HE (B8 )BT ARAN BEFTABRER
IS EENRRTE

JE I — Pl 1N R SRIBE A A

R —& DB AR R R IEE A
HENBAFHEHENEER
BERERAFHE

RERREDHRLPH

MEED
MEBRX
HifEECRD)Em

FEEERRARE & P15 HIE
BITREBASHE

BITHRAEEUR
FIRO BB B

THE—W LN TTAIE/JEJ@/

REMREDHRLPH

ReRASSEREAMPHE
MA1EMEERASFERE

ERETHE %5

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B®12B31BRER
AT 31 DECEMBER, REPRESENTED BY BANK ReSEER » URTHEES
BALANCES AND CASH RE&K&
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2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
116 75
- (20,000)

- 100,000

- 2,000
(32,000) (175,000)
(110,000) =
22,000 =
24,000 =
(150,000) -
@ (51)
(35,640) (62,750)
48,241 (45,707)
(375) =
(49,295) =
- 69,000
(282,955) (132,433)
(51) (531)
(15,333) 15,333
80,990 =
144,000 120,000
100,896 84,080
(1,950) (832)
- (2,000)
308,552 216,050
16,747 6,729

12,156 7,881
1,404 (2,454)
30,307 12,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a joint stock limited company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
Company’s ultimate holding company is Shenzhen Jinma
Asset Management Company Limited (“Jinma Asset”), a
private limited liability company incorporated in the PRC.
It's ultimate controlling party is Mr. Ma Zhong Hong.

The addresses of the principal place of business and
registered office of the Company in PRC are 14/F.,
Jinmao International Apartment, No. 1 Xiao Dong Road,
Da Dong District, Shenyang, the PRC and No. 1-4, 20A,
Central Street, Shenyang Economic and Technological
Development Zone, the PRC, respectively.

The address of the principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Unit C, 21/F, Eton Building, 288 Des Voeux Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) are RMB.

The Company’s H-shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE2016F12A318ILFE

2.

64

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

2.1

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a
number of amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") that are mandatorily effective for an
accounting period that begins on or after 1 January
2016. These amendments have been applied by
the Group for the first time in the current year
unless otherwise specified. The impacts of these
amendments are described below.
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations
Amendments to Hong Kong Disclosure Initiative
Accounting Standard ("HKAS")1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE20165F12H31B ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.2

2016

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases’

Classification and
Measurement of Share-

based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Disclosure Initiative®

Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018.

January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.

January 2017.
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
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2.

66

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a)
classification and measurement of financial assets;
b) impairment of financial assets; and c) general
hedge accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and
measurement of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of each of the subsequent accounting periods. Debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI). All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Further,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss and that cumulative fair value changes
will not be reclassified to profit or loss upon
derecognition of the investment.

Annual Report 2016

2. BRANANRESITHEEMER
SHEUN(FRMBESER ) (E)

2.2

ERMHERRERHHREHR
BETHTFRMEEEER
(%)

BFEHMBHEERFEIHLH
IR

BEPBRELEFEIRE|Aa)
MEEED iﬁ&”ri F o) B 15
BERE: ko—REHPE:T
BV HLE ©

LER MU BEESERE
EME @ ABMBHRELERSE
ISR ERB BB MG ERFE9
REEANE SRRV BE
ERRREENAI A EE
e - BERKEIEHNRER
%E’J%i‘%ﬁ%‘ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&/—\ )
RemnsaRasSAe &
ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬂg EBR
R B HRIRE
ﬁﬁ)ﬂﬂi?i B 12 7 A R Y ER
BHBEERENEVBEEN
FBEAX P A Ra KGR
A& REAREERS
MENEBRE - —ROEE
BAEMEEBRARA R EET)
R XEE - FTBHMER
KERBARZEREZSH
REARBERTE < I 1R
BEBUBREEREIR -
ERUEL A HEIRERHE
2P AZTRAIEE (I IE
FIEEEXERABBVBRSE
LR EIRIE S E B & OF
PR A RE )E’JE&”&/LC
BEEZE  m—RENE=
BRREWA ¢+ BEEUEHER Tx
&g - AR BEEDH KN
GENHEEER -

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

2016

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of a financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of such changes
in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss is presented in profit or loss.

With regard to impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 has adopted an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
required under HKAS 39. In general, the expected
credit loss model requires an entity to assess the
change in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition at each reporting date and to
recognise the expected credit loss depending on
the degree of the change in credit risk.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

68

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the general hedge accounting
requirements, HKFRS 9 retains the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently available
in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the
impact of HKFRS 9. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) believe that it is impractical to
disclose the impact in these consolidated financial
statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the clarification to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

2016

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the clarification to HKFRS 15
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS 15 introduces
a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations

in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the
impact of HKFRS 15. The Directors believe that
it is impractical to disclose the impact in these
consolidated financial statements until the Group
has completed the assessment.
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2.

70

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease
guidance including HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction
of operating leases and finance leases, as required
by HKAS 17, has been replaced by a model which
requires a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability to be recognised for all leases by lessees
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any re-measurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments. Furthermore, the
classification of cash flows will also be affected
as operating lease payments under HKAS 17 are
presented as operating cash flows; whereas, under
the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be
split into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash
flows respectively.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

2016

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

With regard to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive
disclosures in the financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the
impact of HKFRS 16. The Directors believe that
it is impractical to disclose the impact in these
consolidated financial statements until the Group
has completed the assessment.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

J In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled
share-based payment, the accounting for
the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions should follow the same approach
as for equity-settled share-based payments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.2

72

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions (Continued)

Where tax law or regulation requires an
entity to withhold a specified number of
equity instruments equal to the monetary
value of the employee’s tax obligation to
meet the employee’s tax liability which
is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e.
the share-based payment arrangement
has a "net settlement feature”, such an
arrangement should be classified as equity-
settled in its entirety, provided that the
share-based payment would have been
classified as equity-settled had it not
included the net settlement feature.

A modification of a share-based payment
that changes the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled should be
accounted for as follows: the original
liability is derecognised. The equity-settled
share-based payment is recognised at the
modification date fair value of the equity
instrument granted to the extent that
services have been rendered up to the
modification date. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the liability at
the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised
in profit or loss immediately.

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-
based payment arrangements or any withholding
tax arrangements with tax authorities in relation
to share-based payments and hence the Directors
do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

2016

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal
with situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement
of investments retained in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to
fair value are recognised in the former parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The Group did not enter into these transactions
in the current year. The Directors anticipate
that the application of these amendments may
have an impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in future periods should such
transactions arise.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to make
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities. The Directors do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments will have
a material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments provide a number of guidance to
help entities assess and estimate whether sufficient
taxable profits will be available against which it
can utilise a deductible temporary difference. The
Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments will have a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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HZE20165F12A31HIEFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirely, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity including reserves and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant
equity component, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loss control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see accounting policy below);
and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), or additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Appropriate adjustments have been made to conform
the associate’s and the joint venture’s accounting policies
to those of the Group. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are useful and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as
held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method
in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the
investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from construction of infrastructure development
of properties is recognised when the project pass through
the verification and authorisation procedure by the relevant
designated authoriser which assigned by the country
government and the collectability of related receivables
is reasonably assured. Deposits and installments received
from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading are
recognised on a trade date basis. The Group's held-for-
trading investments are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period with changes on fair value being
recognised in profit or loss.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and deprecation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into
account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and professional
fees incurred during the development period. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held-for-trading, (ii) it is designated as at FTVPL,
or (iii) contingent consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which HKFRS
3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading or contingent consideration that may be received
by an acquirer as part of a business combination may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is excluded in the “fair value change
on held-for-trading investments” and “fair value change
on convertible instruments designated as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss” line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6(c).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments
or (c) financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated
unlisted equity investments as AFS financial assets on initial
recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, and changes
in foreign exchange rates, if applicable, are recognised
in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including loan and interest receivables,
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount
due from an association / a non-controlling interest and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity interests, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan
and interest receivables and trade receivables, assets
that assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the agreed contractual
terms, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of loan and interest receivables and trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a loan and interest receivables or trade
receivables is considered uncollectable, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written-off are credited to profit or
loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issued
costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
other payables and accruals and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums of discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The Directors have not come
across any significant areas where critical judgments are
involved in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment of AFS financial assets

The Group classified the unlisted equity securities issued
by private entities incorporated in the PRC as AFS
financial assets and recognises at cost less impairment.
The management makes judgment to determine if such
investments impaired, by evaluating the financial health of
and near-term business outlook for the investee including
the operating and financing cash flow. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, no impairment was considered
necessary in relation to the AFS financial assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to approximately RMB25,779,000 (2015:
RMB45,779,000) and an impairment loss of approximately
RMB20,000,000 (2015: Nil) has been recognised in profit
or loss. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 17.

Estimated impairment for trade receivables and loan
and interest receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the collateral security. If the financial conditions of the
debtors/borrowers of the Group deteriorate, resulting in
impairment of their ability to make repayments, additional
provision may be required. If the financial conditions of
the debtors/borrowers of the Group, on whose account
provision for impairment has been made, are improved
and no impairment of their ability to make payments
were noted, reversal of provision for impairment may be
required. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of trade receivables and loan and interest receivables is
approximately RMB145,701,000 (2015: RMB186,701,000)
and RMB304,636,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB215,000) (2015: RMB174,557,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB203,000)).
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of properties
under development are approximately RMB174,150,000
(2015: RMB199,398,000).

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development according to their net realisable value
based on the realisability of these properties. Net realisable
value for properties under development is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling price
based on the property repurchase agreement, less the
anticipated costs to completion. Based on management'’s
best estimates, there is no material impairment for
properties under development at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. When the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment due to the change of commercial environment
are different from their estimated useful lives, such
difference will impact the depreciation charges and the
amounts of assets written-down for future periods.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. However, the implementation of the tax various
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the
PRC. There are many transactions and calculation for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB12,232,000 (2015: RMB11,216,000)
and approximately of HK$13,792,000 (2015:
HK$10,335,000) available for offset against future profits
in the PRC and Hong Kong respectively. No deferred tax
asset in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
due to the unpredictability of future profits streams. In
case where there are future profits generated to utilise
the tax losses, a material deferred tax asset may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year in which such profits are
recorded.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include input
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 6(c) and 20 provide detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of various assets.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group'’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings
net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on the recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2016

Categories of financial instruments

BREEBREE(E)

ESTHRAEARER - (FRERN
—EMD  EFEBEANAREEIE
EXRBEOER - REES 22 -
AEEEEBIRMRE - BETR
i iEEIA KR BITH EREEREE
AR FEERREAERE -

®MTH

a. eRTRAER -

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL:

Held-for-trading investments
Convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

AFS investments

Loans and receivables:
Loan and interest receivables
Trade receivables
Deposits and other receivables
Amount due from an associate
Amount due from a

non-controlling interest

Bank balances and cash

Financial liabilities

Liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Other borrowings

EELORBRROARAE

MERE

BAABIEF ARz
HBEEE
RIEEERE
BEREARER
BPNEEENE
BEMARKRTA

AHHERE

EAREWTR

W E R B HIE

& AR 7R

B R H b UK
& i — ] BB & R R 5K
FE W — 2 IFHE R

PR IR

RITHEBR MRS

MEBAR

KEEHK AT EZRIE -

FEfFERN
HA BN EAE
HfEE

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETIT

85 14,637

- 48,883

85 63,520

48,390 62,750

304,636 174,557

145,701 186,701

241 900

I8 375 =
49,295 =

30,307 12,156

530,555 374,314

579,030 500,584

107,118 107,768

A 9,627 4,710
- 15,333

116,745 127,811
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6.

108

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
held-for-trading investments, convertible
instruments designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, AFS investments,
loan and interest receivables, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from
an associate/a non-controlling interest, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables
and accruals and other borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rate and equity price.
Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or
the manner in which these risks are managed and
measured. Details of each type of market risks are
described as follows:
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk

Other than those subsidiaries established in
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
HK$, the functional currency of the Group
are RMB in which most of their transactions
are denominated. During the year ended 31
December 2016, approximately 35% (2015:
5%) of the Group's turnover is denominated
in HK$. In addition, the Group has certain
financial assets and liabilities denominated
in HK$.

The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

AR®TT

HK$ BT

307,820

6. E&MIAZE)

b. HERREEBRRKE(Z)

MR (E)
()  EBEEER

Assets

RE

2016 2015
RMB’000

RMB’000
ARBTT

241,411

AR®TT

B A BB AL Y 3% Z T
BRAR(EMgEE®E A
BIL) N AEBEZI
HEEEAARE - MK
DX HAARE
B - HE2016F12 8
3MBLEFE  AEEE
HR8#)35% (20154 :
5% ) LA ITTENE © It
N REEEFHR TN
BT EZTBEEK
Bff -

REBRIRE HRINE
FrECEBEERER
BEZEREAENT :

Liabilities
af®
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT

(7.426) (17,920)

The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging policy, the
management will continuously monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging its foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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6.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to the
currency risk of HK$.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against HK$. 5%
(2015: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjust their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2015: 5%) change in the foreign currency
rates. The sensitivity analysis also includes
inter-company balances and loans to foreign
operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
lender or the borrower. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
(loss) for the year and a negative number
indicates a decrease in post-tax profit for
the year if RMB appreciate 5% against the
foreign currency. There would be an equal
and opposite impact on post-tax profit (loss)
for the year if RMB depreciates 5% against
the relevant foreign currencies.

6.

EMIR(E)
b. MHERRETEBRRBE(E)
MR (E)
()  EEmERE)
HRBES N

HK$ BIT
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

2016

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances as detailed in Note 28.

The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest exposure
and will consider other necessary actions
when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note.

Bank balances are excluded from sensitive
analysis as the Directors consider that the
exposure of cash flow interest rate risk
arising from variable-rate bank balances is
insignificant.
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6.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iir)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities and convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange.
In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments included in held-for-trading
investments had been 10% (2015: 10%)
higher/lower, the post-tax profit (loss)
for the year ended 31 December 2016
would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB7,000 (2015: RMB1,222,000) as a
result of the changes in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

2016

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Operational risk

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group’s exposure to operational risk is primarily
attributable to heavy reliance on a major customer
located in the PRC for the segment of construction
of infrastructure and development of properties.
This major customer accounted for approximately
RMB69,903,000 (2015: RMB294,700,000) or 65%
(2015: 95%) of the Group’s total turnover for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The Directors
will continue closely monitoring the performance
and financial position of this major customer to
avoid any adverse impact on the Group’s financial
position.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on trade receivables as
100% (2015: 100%) were due from the Group's
sole customer in the construction of infrastructure
and development of properties segment.
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6.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has reviewed the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables, loan and interest receivables and other
receivables at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of bank balance
and cash deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivatives financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve as at the end of the
reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTR(Z)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERBETERAERKEZ)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) ROERmEE(E)
Liquidity tables BB LXK
Weighted Repayable Total
average on demand or undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  within one year cash flows amounts
BERRE R
mEFLHE BOME ReRERE BEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
% ARETT AREFT AREFT
2016 20165
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FfiEHERE
Trade payables ERERR N/ATEH 107,118 107,118 107,118
Other payables and accruals EHENTRETBR N/ATER 9,627 9,627 9,627
116,745 116,745 116,745
2015 20155
Non-derivative financial liabilties HTEYBER
Trade payables JER IR AT 107,768 107,768 107,768
Other payables and accruals AfERTRETER NATER 4710 4710 4710
Other borrowings HinfEs 9% 16,713 16,713 15,333
129,191 129,191 127,811

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE2016F12A318ILFE

6.

116

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the
Group determine fair values of various financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Board is responsible for determining
fair value and the process of determining fair value.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The Board works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTR(Z)
C. Fair value measurements of financial C. SMIAZAREEME(ZE)
instruments (Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i) EEEHBEEEZ LR
that are measured at fair value on a EEEESEEL L
recurring basis REEHE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are RERERR - A&H
measured at fair value at the end of each HOMBEEDEAR
reporting period. The following table gives BEFE - TRHAZ
information about how the fair values of EMBEEZRARE
these financial assets are determined (in BuEEE(LEZM
particular, the valuation technique(s) and R 2 (BT i AE
inputs used). %) e
Fair value hierarchy: RABESER :

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016
#20165£12A31BMARRESR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-6 $-8 5z @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T TR T
Financial assets at FVTPL BARREHARRNHERE
- listed equity securities
held-for-trading ~H{ERE LmRAER 8 - - 8
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015
’015E12A31 AR BESH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— 2= E= @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000
ThTL TAL ThT T
Finandial assets at FVTPL BARREGARRNHEEE
- listed equity securities
held-for-trading ~BERE LmfAES 14,637 - - 14,637
- convertible instruments ~REBRALEETA
designated as financial RRM AR
assets at FVTPL TARTE - - 48,883 48,883
14637 - 48,883 63,520
2016 BELARZREROGERALR 117
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HZE2016F12A31HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. E£MIR%E)

C. Fair value measurements of financial C.

instruments (Continued)

EMITAZARMBEME(E)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i) FEFHESEZ LR
that are measured at fair value on a EBEIEESEELD 2
recurring basis (Continued) REBEHEZ)

Fair value
KRRE
As at As at Valuation Significant
31 December 31 December Fair value technique(s) and unobservable
Financial assets 2016 2015 hierarchy key input(s) input(s)
#2016 R20155  SRRE HERDGREE EXTUER
pERE 12A31R 127318 ®R  BARE BABSE
Listed equity securities classified as Asset- Asset- Level 1 Quoted bid pricesin ~ N/A
held-for-trading investmentonthe ~ approximately ~ approximately ~ E—% an active market  NER
consolidated statement of financial RMB85,000  RMB14,637,000 WERTS LEE
position BE- EE- AB
RERHBRAR P BAREEE HAER WAR%
REZ LihAES 85000 14,637,000
Convertible instruments designated as Nil Asset- Level3  Discount rate Expected volatility
financial assets at FVTPL £ oppoximately  F=H determined using of 74.97%
ERARDABEFABRNHE RMB48,883,000 aBinominal Option T8z 5174.97%
BEMIARTA EE- Pricing Model
WARE IR 185 BiE Discount rate of
48,883,0007% EERERN 12.15% (Note 1)
i3k 5 %12.15%
(Hit1)

Note 1: A slight increase in the discount rate used

Hrat1 - BB A B

in isolation would result in a decrease in the REMR EFAEE
fair value measurement of the convertible BHEEREAAE
instruments designated as financial assets at (ERWNEEE
FVTPL, and vice versa. A 1.22% increase in EEMABKETA
the discount rate holding all other variables AR BETER

constant would decrease the carrying
amount of the convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at FVTPL by
RMB42,000.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 in current and prior year.
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HE2016F12A318ILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTE(E)

EMTRAZAAREHE(E)

C. Fair value measurements of financial C.
instruments (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) BE=BLARBEFEL
measurements 2/
31 December 2016 20165E12A31H

Convertible
instruments
designated as
FVTPL
BESEBRARE

{Hit ARZHY
AR IR
RMB’000
AR®TT

Opening balance HARN &SR 48,883
Total loss in profit or loss RIERAEEE (1,141)
Disposals HE (48,241)

Exchange realignment FEHEE 499

Closing balance

HIR 48R -

2016

31 December 2015

201512 B31H

Convertible
instruments
designated as
financial assets
at FVTPL
TEEBEARE
BEFF ABZ=
AR T A
RMB’000
ARET T

Opening balance
Purchases BE
Total gain in profit or loss
Exchange realignment

Closing balance

Of the total gains or losses for the year
included in profit or loss, RMB1,141,000
relates to loss on disposal of convertible
instruments designated as financial asset
at FVTPL at the end of the current report
period (2015: Nil).

The Directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair
value.

EELORARRROARAR

ERFAEER

HIR 4G ER

KBRS
EHER

45,707
1,084
2,092

48,883

REFABRAFER RS
NEEABEES AR
# 1,141,000 7t ( 2015
F ) ERN AR E
REEEEREARE
Bt AR S EE
;’%Ef?ﬁéﬁﬁlﬂﬁ’\])&ﬂéﬁ

EERR - NREMK
BRERZ EMPBE
ERMBAE 2 REE
HARBERS -

119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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7. REVENUE 7.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for i) construction of infrastructure and development of
properties in the PRC; ii) interest income from the provision
of loan financing in Hong Kong; and iii) interest income
from securities investments during the year. Analysis of the
Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

W i

Weas AT AP BB iR ER MR R R 2
BREIBBRHERRE M B K
A i REBFREZNERAZE
WK ERIE » FRARKEZ Wamn
T

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties

Interest income from the provision of
loan financing

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.

Information reported to the Board, being the chief
operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified
by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group'’s reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

- Construction of infrastructure and development of
properties

- Credit business

- Securities investments

120 Annual Report 2016

SRR MR

REERENE R F EUA
Interest income from securities investments  #&353% & &9 F) B.U0A

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTT
69,903 294,700
38,467 16,026

- 674

108,370 311,400

SERE
RERDERDHMRAFEMAES
S(MEBEERRE)ERIENE
JE B P 32 AS Bk B i 2 7 am BK AR 75 4R
Bl - MEKE D MEEELERRE
Al - AR EKE 2 A HREDER o

FhlR  AEBERBEEBMGMEE
AISESIRAV AT IRE D RRANT ¢

- ERIEEREMEZRR

- EEEB

- BHERE
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments:

SEMBEHE(E)

5 BBl B SRR

AT RAKBIZ A HRE REEDHE
o H R MERE DT -

For the year ended 31 December HE12B318ILFE
Segment revenue Segment results
AR AHER
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties BRI RELE 69,903 294,700 (14,344) (10)
Credit business BEEH 38,467 16,026 20,892 27,606
Securities investments BHRE - 674 (2,215) (16,067)
Total 8=t 108,370 311,400 4,333 11,529
Donation b=E - (2,000)
Share of profit of an associate AME—RBE QR 41 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of G — B & A RIAERER
interest in an associate HEEE (3.561) =
Other income HWA 538 2,077
Unallocated exchange gain (loss) AOMER R/ (BR) 19,562 ?)
Central administration costs HRITHAAR (8,881) (7,880)
Profit before tax B A& A 12,032 3,724

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2015: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
results represents the profit earned by (loss from) each
segment without allocation of central administration
costs including directors’ emoluments, donation, share of
profit of an associate, other income, certain depreciation
and unallocated exchange gain (loss). This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

20165 BHEARREROGERAEF

A EsRER DI R B INEE S
PHRIWES - REEIWED SR EE
(20154F : 4&) o

REDHHFEBOR AR KB AT
BERMR o 2 BRSO HPHRENAY
A (BB ) - WA R RITEAA
N BREZEHE - B3 26—
R E ARG - HMWA - F T
ERRDBCE R Y (B518) - tb Tt
BRAERKEAFGEMEEREER
REERNTTE ©
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

SEMBEHE(E)
SHRERAR

LAT%$‘§I&—H&%& KL D EEl
DHEENBEDN

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Segment assets SHEE
Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties AR R EER
Credit business EE¥%
Securities investments FBHRE
Total segment assets DENE E AR
Unallocated RAHL
Consolidated assets REBE
Segment liabilities AR
Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties AR RYFEER
Credit business (B
Securities investments BHIEE

Total segment liabilities HEBERE
Unallocated RAHL
Consolidated liabilities rEAE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain property, plant and equipment, deposit
paid for acquisition of properties/investment/an
associate, interest in an associate, certain deposits
and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
deferred tax asset, amounts due from an associate/
a non-controlling interest and assets classified as
held for sale.

344,310 430,558
305,956 175,877
48,475 126,969
698,741 733,404
573,661 189,942
1,272,402 923,346
107,118 107,768
7,412
- 15,333
114,530 123,101
37,204 11,523
151,734 134,624

L EBEIEE R 0 B R B R o B E R

PETETHE  BERR
- WEYERE A
A"T}SFrihLE’JJ‘i\ R —
MR E N RS - A TRE

R E A EGR ~ SRITARR R
& BEHRBEE FEH&—F'EJ
B RR]SEERERRIAR
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁééuﬁl\%
BOEMHAAEE
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables and accruals, tax
liabilities, deposit received and liabilities associated
with assets classified as held for sale.

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss

SEEH(E)

SWRERARE)

. DETE T EMBEN R MER
Z2/ - HBEAE BRIk
HEBARIEHENEERRR
MAEBERINEED B AA &

Rt ERH

rADERE N R ERE D BEENE

or segment assets: KL%
Construction of
infrastructure and
development of
properties Credit business Securities investments Unallocated Total
ERRHERRNRAR fERER EHRE 7R #it

2016
RMB'000
ABRTR

2015
RVB'000
NERTT

2016
RMB'000

2015
RVB'000
NERTR

ABRTT

216

RMB'000

ARRTR

2015
RMB'000

015
RVB'000
AERTT

2005
CUG{O RVB000
ABRTT IS

2016
RMB'000

Impairment loss recognised in

respect of loan and interest ~ ZLEWEF RIS R
receilables AERE - - - 9
Impairment loss recognised in -~ SIEERAMHE
respect o goodwil B8 20,000 - - -
Fair value change on convertible 157 A2 21 (B izt
instruments designated s~ MERHIEIREAE
financial asset at FVTPL HTERTANA
1EEED - = - -
Exchange loss (gain) 5% Bife () - - 664 (11,580)
Loss on disposal of convertible  HEFRTE ARALE
instruments designated s~ EzF ABRHEH
finandal asset at FVTPL AENIARTA
HER - - - -
Fair value changes on held-for-  #{EEERAH AL
trading investments [EEED - - - -
Loss on disposal of heldfor- ~ HiEREEERER
tracing investments Bl - - . .

114

30

993

- - - - 9
- - - 00 -
(1,084 - - =08y
- (1956 2 (1688 (11579
- - - .
7917 - - N9
0377 - R E
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Other segment information (Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

SEEH(E)
Htt3W|EH (=)
THRETEIZRERREEALES

HES BB EER ) HEETE
ARERE

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of
properties Credit business Securities investments Unallocated Total
ERRMERRIEER EHER BHNE X7E &t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB'000 WRGIVEAVOON RMB'000 RGIVEAVON RMB'000 WVEAVER RMB'000 WGYEAVGN RMB'000 VLAV
ARRTR (NS ARKTT IGRvmARRTT INSSvlARRTT INiaen
Depreciation Vi 8 51 11 10 - - 132 131 151 192
Additions to non-current assets 3EREIEERE
(Note) i) - = 2 51 - - - - 2 51
Income tax expense FiEHAY 3,351 4,093 210 2,108 - - 320 296 5,881 6,497
Bank interest income FAHEKA (8) (38) - = (1) (37) (33) = (116) (75)
Note:  Additions to non-current assets excluded financial instruments Hiat - FERBEERETRESHRITAEEK
and deposit paid for acquisition of investment/an associate BIRE /—MEE A B R ER
and properties. A& °
Geographical information WEEE

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Group operated in two principal geographical areas — the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of

HE2016%E 2015512 A31 8 1L &

EoAREAMEEEHEEEE
— B (TRIEEE) RES -

AEBERBINFEP W ERHRE
BERES - AEEERBEE
WERHRBEEMAERZ7 -

the assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets*
SMBERRRE FERENEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AE%TT AREFT AR®TT AREFT
PRC Hh 69,903 294,700 171,990 45,649
Hong Kong B 38,467 16,700 1,354 1,361
108,370 311,400 173,344 47,010
* Non-current assets excludes financial instruments, deferred E ERBEEAETEESHITE K
tax assets and deposits paid for acquisition of properties/ ERIEEERKENE RE —H
investment/an associate. BE N R RET € o
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SEBE(E)
Information about major customers EEEREH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HEEFEREEFHRAGAEREE
contributing over 10% of the total turnover of the Group EEREI10%RFFIBELT ¢

are as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
Customer A — Construction of infrastructure &RFEA—ZERERHEER
and development of properties b e 69,903 294,700
9.  OTHER INCOME 9. HfulkA
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Bank interest income HRITHALEWA 116 75
Dividend income AR B A 393 -
Sundry income HETE A 29 2
Compensation income arising from
termination of acquisition of 70% A 42 U BRI R A= 70 % A%
equity interest of Shenzhen Zhong De REE B EIRA - 2,000
538 2,077
10.  FINANCE COST 10. HER*
An analysis of the Group'’s finance cost is as follows: REEWIER AR SITAT -
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Interest expense on margin securities
accounts FRBHFEFPHNEAZ 51 531
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HBE2016F12A318ILFE

11.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FrSRAX
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Current tax: BNERFHIA :
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B ETEF 1,997 3,335
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBNER 2,530 2,404
Deferred tax (Note 34) RIETIE (i 234) 1,354 758
Total income tax recognised in profit or loss R Ez MR FTIS T 25E 5,881 6,497

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company
and the PRC subsidiaries are 25% for both years.

The tax charges for the years can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as follows:

BAENGHRIRZMEE GHERTR
F#16.5%=HE -

BREBEHEARANMBEEERETE
(TREMRBVE]D) REEMEHEE
He Pl - AR R BF B R Ra%
MEFE 2 HER25% °

REZABRHERT - FRMGHHAXHE
BRECBE A < SR

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARETFT

Profit before tax FRIRRTEF
Income tax at applicable tax rates LRBERT X ERE
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FH AR AT A S
for tax purpose &
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose AR WA R TS 5 2
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIERA N R 5K
differences not recognised B
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTR IS EIERT S
Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised B UL AT AR RN FS 1R
Tax effect on tax reduction BT 2
Income tax expense FRS X

12,032 3,724
i) 518 (103)
7%
7,088 4,108
(3,238) (2,280)
i)
1,354 758
& 744 4,051
(551) (5)
(34) (32)
5,881 6,497
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HE2016F12A318ILFE

2016

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

12. FRBRF(BR)

Profit (loss) for the year has
been arrived at after charging:

Directors’, supervisors’ and
chief executives’ remuneration
Other staff cost
— Salaries, wages and other benefits
— Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

Total staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (including RMB6,000
(2015: RMB20,000) capitalised in
properties under development)

Auditor’s remuneration (including the
fee for the PRC subsidiaries)

— Audit service
— Non-audit service

Donation

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and interest receivables

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

EELORBRROARAE

FRm i (EHE) 2 R

B EER
ITETRAENME
Hith 8 TR
—¥e  TEMEMBET

— RRREFIEH &I K
BTRAHER

ME - BEMRETE
(BREERBRPYE
AE#6,0007T(2015% :
AE#20,0007T))

ZEREN N & (R g
B ARMIZERER)

— ZH IR
— IERZERTS

B

B U S R B ) S R RR
RIERE

RELEHENRERE
(g

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
1,536 1,794
1,847 1,568
244 310
3,627 3,672
151 192

870 777

103 87

- 2,000

- 9

207 427
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A31AILFE

13.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. B¥ - EX . TEFBRABRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES FHER

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ (a) EF -EERIETABHMN
emoluments &
Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s FHNRBER ETRARAR]
remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant EHHENES  BEEREE
to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies TTABREBNT

Ordinance, is as follows:

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances  benefits schemes Total

anEn

g FaRak g #h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AERTT ARRTR AERTR AERTT

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #F2016512A318

l:3:5
Executive directors (Note x) WiTER i)
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) (Note ij KHR(EE) (ki) 100 234 19 353
Deng Xiao Gang HEm 100 207 18 325
Huang Zhen Kun B 30 22 30 282
230 663 67 960
Non-executive directors FafTES
Li Yu Xiang (Note i ZEE(Wii) 30 - - 30
Yin Zong Chen FRE 30 - - 30
60 - - 60
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13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13.

EE BT FRITRARRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) FEE(Z)
(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ (a) EF -EERIETABHMN
emoluments (Continued) & (%)
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances  benefits schemes Total
Biriasl
e FORER g dat i
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRRTT AB®TT ABBTT ABRTT
Independent non-executive directors B FHTEE
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (Note i) BRERL HzHii) 120 - - 120
He Qing Jia (Note i) {EEAiii) 30 - - 30
Yu Guan Jian SR 120 - - 120
270 - - 270
Sub-total Vit 560 663 67 1,290
Supervisors Ex
Fang Wei Ran (Note vi TR (M) 10 66 10 86
He Song Xi (Notes iii and ix) TANZ (A2 Riv) 5 - - 5
Huang Yong Jing (Note i EXE (W) 10 82 15 107
Wang Xing Ye TRE 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng REE 10 - - 10
Chen Jung Feng (Note vii) R Histvi) 5 - - 5
Sub-total VGt 55 148 25 228
Deputy chief executive officer HiTREs
Wang Hong Yi (Note i AT (Hii) - 15 3 18
Total #8 615 826 95 1,536
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13.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. B¥ - EX . TEFBRABRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) FERZ)
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s (a) EF -EERIETABHMN
emoluments (Continued) & (%)
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances benefits schemes Total
RINER
e HeREE SRR &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015F 128318

H5E
Executive directors (Note x) RITER (i)
Ma Zhong Hong (Note j SEE() 51 111 17 179
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) (Note i SKAEA( 22 (Htii) 52 118 8 178
Deng Xiao Gang Hizm 100 207 19 326
Huang Zhen Kun EEb 30 232 12 274
233 668 56 957
Non-executive directors FUTER
Li Yu Xiang (Note i X&) 16 = = 16
Yin Zong Chen FRE 30 - - 30
Zhang Lei Lei (Note | REE(Wt) 16 = = 16
62 - - 62

130 Annual Report 2016 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12A318 LFE
13.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13, B% - E¥ - TEFBRABRES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) HFREE(Z)
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s (a) EF -EERIETABHMN
emoluments (Continued) & (%)
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances benefits schemes Total
RINER
ik Ha Rk STEIfS fekd
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Independent non-executive directors B FH{TES
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (Note i) BRe4 (Hyitii) 105 - - 105
He Qing Jia (Note i) R (Histi) 26 - - 26
Wong Kai Tat (Note iv) TREH ) 2 - - 20
Wei Jie Sheng (Note iv) W25 (Hit) 5 - - >
Yu Guan Jian HER 120 - - 120
276 - - 276
Sub-total IVt 571 668 56 1,295
Supervisors Ex
Fang Wei Ran (Note v} FERWztv) 6 77 3 86
He Song Xi (Notes iii and ix) TANR (H2iRiv) 10 - - 10
Huang Yong Jing (Note i EXE (W) 10 83 15 108
Wang Xing Ye TEE 15 - - 15
Yi Shi Min (Note v) Pty 4 51 5 60
Zhang Yun Feng (Note i) FER (i) 9 - - 9
Sub-total Vit 54 21 23 288
Deputy chief executive officer BIfT RS
Wang Hong Yi (Note i AT (HiRi) - 177 34 M
Total 1] 625 1,056 113 1,79
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13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE" AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a)

132

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’
emoluments (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015. No emoluments have
been paid to the directors and chief executives as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Notes:

i Resigned on 24 June 2015

ii Appointed on 24 June 2015

iii Appointed on 12 February 2015

iv Retired on 12 February 2015

v Appointed on 12 February 2015 and resigned on 10
June 2015

vi Appointed on 10 June 2015

vii Resigned on 4 February 2016

viii Appointed on 15 June 2016

iX Resigned on 15 June 2016

X Salaries paid to executive directors of the Company

are in connect with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings.
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e -

i 2015456 H24 BEHE
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iii R2015F2 A 12BEZE

iv M20158F2 A 12 BRE

v 720152 12 AEZEKRN20155F

6 A 108 BT
vi R2015F6 H10REZR(E
vii R201652 A4BBHT

viii R20165F6 A 158 EZE

ix M201656 A 15T
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HE2016F12A318ILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ AND 13. EF EX -FETHRABRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) #HEB(Z)

(b)  Five highest paid employees (b) EBREHFER
The five highest paid employees of the Group FRAEERE&ERFHEER
during the year include three directors (2015: four FE=REF(20154F : MEZ=E
directors), details of whose emoluments are set out F) BFAMeHE N LX T
in Note 13(a) above. Details of the remuneration 13(a) ° AW * R T A (2015
for the year of the remaining two (2015: one) F:—R)FARTNES - BES
highest paid employees who are neither a director, SEEITBRABNE=TEE
supervisors nor chief executive of the Company are B BB -
as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and bonus e B RAIEAT 527 447
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes RIREFET IR 22 9
549 456
Their emoluments were within the following bands: &y T NI E -

Number of individuals

A8

-:“I 2015
2 1

Nil to RMB1,000,000 == AR¥1,000,0007T

During the two years ended 31 December 2016 H E20164F & 2015512 A 31
and 2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group HIEMEFE - ANEEBER
to the Company’s Directors, supervisors, chief AREIES  BFE - FETH
executives or any of the five highest paid employees AESERAMNESFHBES
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the S ERBFEINAZSMA
Group, or as compensation for loss of office. None RNEE 2 RENS RS E - &
of the Directors, supervisors, chief executives and £ 20165 & 2015%12 A31H
the five highest paid employees has waived or IEREFE  $iEEE  E=
agreed to waive any emoluments during each of REZETHRABRAMZ®E
the two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. B2 5 p 2 3k [F) = FREE (E AT M
Apart from the Directors, deputy chief executive & ° BlE20164F %2015 12
officer and supervisors, the Group has not classified A3MBIEMEFE @ BRESE -
any other person as chief executives during the year BIfTIAER REESIN - RNEE
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. WESEFREMALTOESE

ZITIIAR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE2016F12A318ILFE

14. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

BRAEF(BER)

ARRBEEANREBRERAREER
(BB THIRIA TR E

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to VNN b =N
owners of the Company FEEF (E518) 2,349 (2,773)
2015
‘000
T
Number of shares Ein&H
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic earnings Bt EARE AR F|(EB)
(loss) per share M B B A hE 5 2K 1,436,828 1,143,642

No diluted earnings (loss) per share have been presented
as there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

15. DIVIDENDS 15.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2016, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2015: Nil).

HBREE2016F K£20155F12 A31H 1k
FETELBEHES EMNT B
WA E 25| SIREEER T (E518) -

B2
R2016%F - EF G NRE R TEHIK

BATMARE -+ T B R HR R DA SR R
EEIRIBEMALE (20154 : ) °
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HE2016F12A318ILFE

16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - BERMR
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvement equipment vehicles Total
& BER
HEEE N RE #5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETL ARETL AREFTL
cosT B#
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 18 - 193 1,459 1,652
Additions N 24 27 - 51
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A318 24 220 1,459 1,703
Additions INE - 2 - 2
Exchange realignment EREE 1 2 - 3
At 31 December 2016 #2016 12A31H 25 224 1,459 1,708
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND ACCUMULATED REHTER
IMPAIRMENT RetRE
At 1 January 2015 1201517818 = 133 147 280
Provided for the year (Note) FENRBERE) 5 42 145 192
At 31 December 2015 2015%12A31R 5 175 292 472
Provided for the year (Note) ERNRE(HE) 5 15 131 151
At 31 December 2016 #2016 12A31H 10 190 423 623
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At 31 December 2016 #2016 12A31H 15 34 1,036 1,085
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A318 19 45 1,167 1,231
Note: Included in depreciation provided for the year of Mt FRFTERBERLHARME,0007T

approximately RMB6,000 (2015: RMB20,000) is capitalised in
properties under development in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, as these
furniture, fixtures and office equipment and motor vehicles
are used at the construction site.

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF

(20154 : AR#¥20,0007T) &R
201612 A31 HMER & SRR KR
RERPMEBTENE - REZR
M~ HERBEARRETIRELIR

HEA -
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16.

17.

136

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. YE - GEREEZ)

The above property, plant and equipment are depreciated LA EWZ - BERZEER HUER

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: ER B EREGHRITE -

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of HEXE R FHEAE20% (JAER
the lease term or 20% & RLE)

Furniture, fixtures and 8-20% Eh - KER 8-20%

office equipment N
Motor vehicles 8-20% b 8-20%
GOODWILL 17. w8

RMB’000
AREETTT
COST B
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 720151818 ~ 20155F12A318 &

31 December 2016 2016%£12A31H 45,779
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT ZitiRE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 720151818 + 20155F12A318 &

1 December 2016 201612418 =
Impairment loss recognised in the year FAERARERE 20,000
At 31 December 2016 2016512831H 20,000
CARRYING VALUES RE{E
At 31 December 2016 720165128318 25,779
At 31 December 2015 7201512 A31H 45,779

Impairment test on goodwill

AEEENR

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill have
been allocated to two individual cash-generating units
(CGUs), comprising one subsidiary engaged in the
construction of infrastructure and development properties
segment and one subsidiary engaged in the credit business
segment. The carrying amounts of goodwill are allocated
to the following units at the end of the reporting period:

Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17.

Impairment test on goodwill (Continued)

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties
Zhongfang Chaozhou (“Unit A”)

EREREERR
MERE

Credit business BEERYE
Chung Hwa Finance Limited (“Unit B") FEEEERAR]
(IBEfZ])

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of RMB20,000,000 (2015:
Nil) in relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of the Unit
A. The principal activity of the Unit A is the construction
of infrastructure and development of properties in
Chaozhou (the “Project”). The Project cover land area with
approximately 12,000 acres.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering the expected construction
years and adopting the pre-tax discount rate of 26.62%
(2015: 23.70%). Cash flow projections during the budget
period for Unit A is also based on the budgeted sales and
expected gross margins during the budget period and the
raw materials price inflation during the budget period.
Expected cash inflows/outflows, which include budgeted
sales, gross margin and raw material price inflation
have been determined based on past performance and
management'’s expectations for the market development.

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF

REEM(TAZER])

[} (G-

AR ENR (2
2016 2015
RMB‘000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
24,459 44,459
1,320 1,320
25,779 45,779

HE20165F12A31 B ILFE » KEE
MEUWBAENEENEERERRE
518 A R % 20,000,000 (20154 :
) o ABBRIAYE B XS AR MR
mEEEMEER((BER]) - HE
BEMTHA12,0005 o

tRReELBMAIKRESENEE
REFERBEREBANT

AEfr

Itk BE A7 HY A] U [B) < B8 T 3% 5 R (B B T
BEHEET - %t ERAEEEE
TR ERF RN HREGTHRS
ME  LARBAIHTIN % 26.62% (2015
F :23.70%) - AR RNTEEBARIR G
MERRTBEBEHRNTEZEHEE R
TEHAEF = A M TE & Hi R0 R M BHE %
BIREBE - BHIRSRA R (B2E
TEEHE « TR EEMAHERBEIR)
TIRBERAARBRMEREEHMIGER
MTEHRSH -
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17.

138

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test on goodwill (Continued)
Unit A (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
construction of land area of 4,500 acres of the Project
has substantially completed. Due to the fact that the
application of construction of phase Il is still in progress
and there are no formal plan of further construction
of phase Ill, the Group was uncertain on the future
development of the Project as originally planned. In view
of the above conditions, the Directors are of the view that
impairment loss of approximately RMB20,000,000 has
been recognised in respect of the Unit A to the extent
that the carrying amount exceeded its recoverable amount
based on the best estimate by the Directors with reference
to the valuation report issued by BMI Appraisals Limited
("BMI Appraisals”), an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group and thus, the
amount was recognised to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Unit B

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5 year period, and adopting
the pre-tax discount rate of 10.82% (2015: 10.57%). Unit
B’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2015: 3%) growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. Based on the best estimate by the
Directors with reference to the valuation report issued by
BMI Appraisals, management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of Unit B to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of Unit B.
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(-} {6V
AR ENR (2
AEfr(E)

HZE2016F12831BHIEFE - HE
4500 EA R b B KRB E5Eak o
AR —HERBEBNEETR - B
moHE— P ERMERGE - A%
B EEEBEBEZREMEINAER
B-ZRLEMBER EFERE ER
BES2ZTHASEREEENET
BERBEMABEMPAMBETEER
Aal([FRFFHE ) FHOGHERSM
ER R EE T AR R R EE 18
#9 AR #20,000,0007T @ ABREIEFE
BEMKESEAR WEBASED
RELE2016F 12 ABMBHILFE 276
B M EA R R ERER o

BEfr

U Bz AT W Bl & 5B TH AR R E A (B
EBifE - ZEXAEEEBHMAER
FHNEEEGHANEESRE -
LA K B BT 4T 38 R 10.82% (2015 4F -
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mETERAFABEREREI%(2015
F 1 3% ) el o I REFARIZAARATT
EWEEASE  WEBHMEBEITE
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18.  INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. R—HBELATMHER

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TT AREEFTT

Cost of investment in an associate RS R EHIE &R AR 150,000 -

Share of post-acquisition profits and DGR R R

other comprehensive income EfhZ2EEA 41 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of PR —EHE S A R R

interest in an associate ERBEEE (3,561) =

146,480 =

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Shenzhen
Zhonghe Chuangjian Investment Development Company
Limited (“Shenzhen Zhonghe”), a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 30% paid-up
registered capital in Shishi Shen Guo Tou Commercial
Property Company Limited (“Shishi Shen Guo Tou”) at the
consideration of RMB150,000,000. The acquisition has
been completed on 19 May 2016.

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting
period are as follow:

HZE20165F12 A31 8 ILFE - FIIH
FREBIREEERERAE(EINR
&l ARREEZEMBAR)ZEAK
B AR 150,000,0007C 4 B8 F 15 5
KERAEZEERAR( AR
30%HBEFEMER - WESEE R
201655 A19H 5K °

AEERRERROHE R RFE
LI

Proportion of  Proportion of voting

Country of ownership interest  rights held by the
Name of entity registration place of business held by the Group Group Principal activity
sROBEHAE FREAFART
{4 BRER HELH HLLA TEEE
Ed - EQ -
Shishi Shen Guo Tou PRC PRC 30% 30% - Operation of commercial
RRAREIR i HE complex
VN
Summarised financial information of material EXBEAFNMBEEEEE

associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs.

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF

AEEBERR M HER R ESRT
TX o AT ER R IEH 2 A7)
WRIB 78 B 5 s 2 R A B0 B 75
RFFIREVEHE
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18.  INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18. R—REBEBLATIORE(Z)

Summarised financial information of material EXHEATNMESHEEZ)
associate (Continued)

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in B4h 4
these consolidated financial statements. i3

Shishi Shen Guo Tou

ANRER RMB’000
AR®TT
Current assets mBEE 630
Non-current assets EMENEE 704,121
Current liabilities ik )=V (38,884)
Non-current liabilities EmEIEE (177,600)

1 June 2016 to
31 December

2016
120165
RMB’000
AR®TIT

Revenue WA
Profit for the period B A 136
Other comprehensive income for the period HAAE At 2 U A -
Total comprehensive income for the period AT N 136

Dividends received from associate during the period AN B Bt A =l EL AT IR B -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial it B 7 B R R B A B TS R 3R R
information to the carrying amount of the interests in B Nl R BREE ¥R -

associate recognised in the financial statements:

2016

RMB'000

AR®TT

Net assets of Shishi Shen Guo Tou ARMRERFEE 488,267
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in IR B A IR B O B R i A

Shishi Shen Guo Tou Lt 451 30%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Shishi
Shen Guo Tou REBNARRBRR AR REE 146,480
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19.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

19. TAHHERE

A ERERE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TR ARBTT
48,390 62,750

Unlisted investments classified as non- DEAIEREEER
current assets: JEETMIRE
— equity securities —RAES

(@

2016

As at 31 December 2015, the unlisted equity
investment represents (i) 4.96% equity interest in a
PRC private limited company engaged in banking
business (the “AFS 1”); and (ii) 4.35% equity
interest in a PRC private limited company engaged
in tower crane rental, concrete logistics, concrete
pumping and technical engineering training and
services (the “AFS I1"). As disclosed in Note 29,
together with the proposed disposal of the entire
share capital of Shenzhen Shi Cheng He Chuang
Jian Investment and Development Company
Limited (“Cheng He Chuang Jian”), the AFS Il has
been classified as “assets held for sales” in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the unlisted equity
investment represents 10.9% (2015: 4.96%) equity
interest in AFS I.

The above unlisted investments are measured at
cost less accumulated impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the
Directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

EELORBRROARAE

MN2015%12A318 » 3L
IR ERE () —HFRELAS
AR (HEKBRERTR
) ([ HEE1])H4.96% %
o RGN —HERRLABTRA
A(EERABRERASE R
TR RRERZEREM T
IR R (AT E &)
4.35%R%4E o BRI FE29AT I
Z - ERgZZEERImEE
Bl EERARAR(HE
BlIFE ) 2R - AT EHEIR
2016512 A31 BERA MM
ROBERIFHIEHEEE] -

R2016F12H31H » EE™
&R &R H &1 10.9%
(2015%F : 4.96% ) A% #E -

Eili I EMRE AR ER
BERRNRABESE - R
AERERAABERANEE
HEEKR EERR AAE
BRI SEfhEt o
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20. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS 20.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

EHEBEBEARREFARSZOME

Financial assets designated at FVTPL:

BB TS B -

——FRFHH
AR

— Convertible bonds mature over one year

On 20 August 2015, Sichuang Overseas Investment
Development Corporation Limited (“Sichuang Overseas”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as a subscriber,
agreed to subscribe for 4%-coupon rate convertible
bonds which were issued by Asia Resources Holdings
Limited (“ARHL"), a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 899), in the
principal amount of HK$56,160,000 (“ARHL Convertible
Bonds”). Assuming the conversion rights attaching to
the ARHL Convertible Bonds are exercised in full at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.72 per conversion share,
a total of 78,000,000 conversion shares of ARHL will be
allotted and issued. As at 31 December 2015, the fair
value of the ARHL Convertible Bonds was approximately
RMB48,883,000 (equivalent to HK$57,488,000). The gain
arising from fair value changes of ARHL Convertible Bonds
of RMB1,084,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Detail of the acquisition of ARHL Convertible Bonds has
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8
September 2015.

There was no redemption of ARHL Convertible Bonds
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the ARHL Convertible Bonds

has been pledged as security under the margin securities
account.
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BERBAABEFARD

HEMTREIR
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTR ARETIT
- 48,883

R201548 208 & BAIEINEE 3%
BRERAR([BELGIN  RRElZ2E
MEAR) ERRBA)REREHE
MERIZRER AR ([ENER]
REREFMRKINER AR @ EE
BTG REB R ER LW (RO R
§% 1 899) ) 1T %8 & 56,160,000
BITHAE AT AR E S ([ M E R A]
B ES ) - BEREMNER A IRKE
SRR EZ Y S EIRETRR
&I 90.728 T EBEITE - HRLE
% 3474 $£78,000,000 % 25 M & IR
&A% ° 201512 4318 » 25
BRAIMBESHNAABENAAR
& 48,883,000 7T ( #H & 1 57,488,000
BIL) c REEMERAIMIRESFHD
hEEEHmMEENKTHARE
1,084,000 T E £2015F 12 A31H
IEFERELEER o

BRAWEDNERITERESENFB
HNWA QT BEA2015FE9A8HHA

==

HZE2015F12A31BILFE @ WEE
o] M E R AT IR E 5 o

M2015512 A318 » sME R A%
BHE TIRF - (EAFREZSNIKE

0
R °
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20. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (Continued)
The fair values of the ARHL Convertible Bonds were valued
by BMI Appraisals, independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, using the Binominal
Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model of ARHL
Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2015 were as
follows:
Stock price HK$0.43
Adjusted conversion price HK$0.72
Volatility 74.97%
Dividend yield N/A
Option life (years) 2.64 years
Risk free rate 0.66%
Details of the fair value measurement for the convertible
instruments designated as financial assets at FVTPL are
disclosed in Note 6(c).
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has disposed of all ARHL Convertible Bonds with the
consideration of HK$56,160,000. A loss on disposal of
RMB1,141,000 has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of the disposal
has been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
21 January 2016.

2016 BELARZREROGERALR

20.

EHEBEBEARRENARSZOME
REMRETIR(E)

TMERITBRESH AR EERE
ANEEWEBENBE YIS EREEM
BRI EF A AR T EE
FHEITEE - W2015512H31H » 28
NE R AT AR (E H 18 R A BUE S

BIEAR

f&E 0.43%7T
KRR (E 0.727%7T
R @ 74.97%
i 5= NiE
HAREFHA(4F) 2.644F
42 [ P A1) = 0.66%

BEREERRAABESABRRNH
BEENARRTANAABENE
BB EE6(O R K EE -

HE2016F12A31BIEFE » A&EE
HEEIIMERITBRES - RE
/56,160,000 7T - HEBEBEARKE
1,141,000 C E R E = 20164 12 A 31
BItFEMBRTER - ABRLEN
i BARHMARRIHEA2016%F 1
A21BRRE -
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21.

22.

144

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 21, MEB—RMEBLASREMAHTS
Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated BIEARAFHAA2014512H12H
12 December 2014, Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian AL FIITIL e ZIEEERES
Investment Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen PR (DRYIGEA]) 712014512 A
Shen He") entered into the acquisition agreement dated 2B ERIITFBIEEEBBR AR
12 December 2014 (the “Acquisition Agreement”) (ORI 1) &7 7 Wk g e (T Ui 143
with Shenzhen Newpont Investment Company Limited #D Bl R ABRERED
("Shenzhen Newpont”), pursuant to which Shenzhen & MRIDEF B R R BB HE
Newpont has conditionally agreed to sell, and Shenzhen fRfn - MERRITREDRERA
Shen He has conditionally agreed to acquire the sale Al(DRIIZREE D) B ZRRART70% R AR R
shares, representing 70% paid up capital of Shenzhen EX - R E AR 150,000,000
Zhong De Logistics Company Limited (“Shenzhen Zhong ([EZBEEEIE]) - R2014512 A31
De”) and the shareholder’s loan at a total consideration B - ##& AR%80,000,000 TiE1ER
of RMB150,000,000 (the “Proposed Acquisition”). At RE—BLHENAREFE °
31 December 2014, the balance of RMB80,000,000
represented a refundable deposit paid as part of the
consideration.
Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 3 RIEAR AR HHEA2015F8 A3HMA
August 2015, Shenzhen Shen He and Shenzhen Newpont & ORYIEA R RY T FBR 201548
entered into the termination agreement (the “Termination A3BET & EwaE (4R bk ) + BD
Agreement”) on 3 August 2015 to terminate the Proposed R4 R s SR -
Acquisition with immediate effect.
Shenzhen Newpont has refunded the considerations BEKRIEHZE - RIFHERESE
received of RMB100,000,000 together with the liquidated 2015512 A31 H IEFE RFYIL IR
compensation at RMB2,000,000 to Shenzhen Shen He EBDWAEBAER100,000,000 T [E
during the year ended 31 December 2015, pursuant to the B H B E AR %2,000,0007T °
Termination Agreement.
DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES 22. WEMRFAZFFEETE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEEME(EERTX)

Properties (define as below)
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22.

2016

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated
15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang Investment &
Consulting Company Limited* (“Beijing Shen Shang”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the acquisition agreement dated 15 November 2016 (the
" Acquisition Agreement”) with Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang
Zhan Property Limited* (”Beijing Zhong Tou”), pursuant to
which Beijing Zhong Tou agreed to sell, and Beijing Shen
Shang agreed to acquire a commercial premise with the
construction area of 2,800 square meters (with the right
to use 5,000 square meters of car parks at the basement
level two, being part of Phase 3 of the ancillary facility
project of Beijing International Zone Convention Center*
to be constructed in Beijing Shunyi District Tianzhu
Airport Commercial Zone* (the “Properties”) at a total
consideration of RMB152,800,000.

Details of the acquisition of the Properties has been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement date 15
November 2016.

At 31 December 2016, the balance of RMB110,000,000
represented a refundable deposit paid as part of
the consideration. Beijing Zhong Tou has pledged
certain properties with market value of approximately
RMB118,800,000 to secure the deposit paid. The
acquisition is expected to be completed by 31 December
2018.

* English name for identification only
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23.

146

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF INVESTMENT/AN

23.

WARIR R —FBHE 2 B TR

ASSOCIATE &
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFIT
Deposit paid for acquisition of 20% W EEEME(FE R
equity interest of Hai Yue Real Estate FisEa)20% &4
(as defined in Note a) i THaT & 153,000 175,000
Deposit paid for acquisition of 28% WEERYIE 3/ N EEE K
equity interest of Shenzhen Hui Ye (FEZ RMEb)28%
Micro Lending (as defined in Note b) MEHEET S (M HET & 32,000 =
185,000 175,000

Notes:

On 27 July 2015, Shenzhen Cheng He Chuag Jian Investment
and Development Company Limited (“Cheng He Chuag
Jian"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the acquisition agreement with Shenzhen Hou Feng
Trading Company Limited* (“Hou Feng”), pursuant to which
Hou Feng conditionally agreed to sell and Cheng He Chuag
Jian conditionally agreed to acquire 30% equity interest of
Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development Company
Limited (“Hai Yue Real Estate”) at a total consideration of
RMB195,000,000 (the “Hai Yue Proposed Acquisition”). Hai
Yue Real Estate is a company with limited liability established
under the laws of the PRC and is principally engaged in
developing, constructing, selling, renting and managing
of commercial building, namely Dongshan Plaza (the “GZ
Property”) located in Guangzhou, the PRC.

Details of the Hai Yue Proposed Acquisition has been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27 July
2015. At 31 December 2015, the acquisition has not been
completed and the balance of RMB175,000,000 represented
the refundable deposit paid to Hou Feng.

On 3 March 2016, Cheng He Chuang Jian and Hou Feng
together with Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian Investment
Development Company Limited* (“Tai He Chuang Jian"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, agreed the transfer
of the Hai Yue Proposed Acquisition from Cheng He Chuang
Jian to Tai He Chuang Jian.

* English name for identification only
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23.  DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF INVESTMENT/AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

2016

(Continued)

On 19 July 2016, Tai He Chuang Jian and Hou Feng entered
into a supplemental agreement to amend the following terms
and conditions of the Hai Yue acquisition agreement:

1) the percentage of equity interest in Hai Yue Real
Estate to be acquired shall be changed from 30% to
20%;

2) the consideration shall be decreased by

RMB65,000,000 to RMB130,000,000 (the “New
Consideration”) and the balance of RMB45,000,000
will be refunded to Tai He Chuang Jian by Hou
Feng within 10 days upon the completion of the
change in industry and commercial registration. In
the event that Hou Feng is unable to refund the
balance of RMB45,000,000 within 10 days upon the
completion of the change in industry and commercial
registration, Hou Feng shall pay Tai He Chuang Jian
an interest on the late payment in accordance with
the bank borrowing interest rate.

Details of the supplemental agreement has been disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 19 July 2016. Hou Feng
has refunded RMB22,000,000 to Tai He Chuang Jian during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the acquisition has not been
completed and the balance of RMB153,000,000 represented
the refundable deposit paid to Hou Feng. Hou Feng has
pledged 5% of the equity interest of Hai Yue Real Estate to
Tai He Chuang Jian as collateral to secure the outstanding
refundable deposit. The acquisition has been completed
subsequent to the reporting period as details disclosed in
Note 41(b).

On 10 March 2016, the Company entered into the acquisition
agreement with the independent third party (the “Vendor”)
to acquire 28% equity interest in Shenzhen Hui Ye Micro
Lending Company Limited* (“Shenzhen Hui Ye Micro
Lending”) for a consideration of RMB42,000,000.

As at 31 December 2016, the acquisition has not been
completed and the balance of RMB32,000,000 represented
the deposit paid to the Vendor. The acquisition was
terminated subsequently to the reporting period as details
disclosed in Note 41(c).

* English name for identification only
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24, PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24. BRYE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER#TT ARBFT
Properties under development which
are expected to be completed and TSR 128 B RE R I
available for sale within 12 months AN ECBRPME
comprise of the following: BEUTEE:
Construction costs and
expenditure capitalised BERARENMEFAX 174,150 199,398
The properties under development are all located in the BRPYEDICAFE o
PRC.
25. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 25. BRBERERFE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables FELEERWERNFE 304,851 174,760
Less: Accumulated impairment allowance & : SEHRERE (215) (203)
304,636 174,557

At 31 December 2016, the loan receivables arising from
credit business are unsecured (2015: RMB21,299,000
which was secured by unlisted shares of a private limited
company) bear fixed interest ranging from 10%-15%
(2015: 12%-15%) per annum.

The maturity profile of these loan receivables from
customers (including interest receivables), net of
impairment losses recognised, at the end of reporting
period, analysed by the remaining periods to their
contracted maturity, is as follows:

M20165F12 8318 » e E¥KEL
I EW B R AEIEIF(2015F : AR
#21,299,000 7T SAFL A B BR 2 R IE
RGO ERR) - REEFFNEN T
10%-15% (20154 : 12%-15% ) &t
B o

RBERR  ZERREFPESR (B
FEUCHB) R B R ERIRIZ A4
FM B T HEMRE DT

KT HERER
=EAR

HE=1EAE IR
BE—FEIR=

Repayable:

Within 3 months

Over 3 months but less than 1 year
Over 1 year but less than 3 years
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2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT ARBETTT
304,636 117,582

- 56,975

304,636 174,557
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25. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25.

The movements of allowance for impairment during the
year were as follows:

SR RFS ()
FRREREEDIT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

At 1 January M1A1R
Impairment loss recognised during the year &N R BIERE
Written off during the year F OB

Exchange realignment T

At 31 December M12A31H

The loan receivables from customers have been
reviewed by the management of the Company to
assess impairment allowances which are based on the
evaluation of collectability, aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection statistics of
individually significant accounts or a portfolio of accounts
on a collective basis.

At 31 December 2016, none of the loan and interest
receivables was past due but not impaired (2015: Nil).

The fair value of the Group’s loan and interest receivables,
determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted using the applicable interest
rate at the end of reporting period, approximates to the
carrying amount of the loan and interest receivables.

The loan receivables outstanding as at 31 December 2016
and 2015 are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

20165 BHEARREROGERAEF

199
- 9

- @)
12 3
215 203

ARBIEEECENEREFEN -
ARHERERE - DERARERE
ZHE - BREWREDITIAREIEE
ZH e (BREREERE REREAR
Pz B EERFPAAS BEUR
L)

2016512 8318 @ IEER M EWK
FIEC BB ARRE (20154 « ) o

AEEHEEERRFEN DA EE
THER R E MR ER MR KR
KREREFTREREMETE - HEE
WE R KB RBREERE
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26.

27.

150

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 26. BEEERKRS
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREEFTT
Listed investment LHRE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB L2 RAFE S 85 14,637
The fair values of the above listed securities are determined Lt ETRESFZ AR BEIIRHRERS
based on quoted market bid prices available at the Stock AR AT TS EABERE - B #
Exchange at the end of the reporting period. Further AR BETENEMERHE6(C)H
information of the fair values measurement is disclosed in WHEE -
Note 6(c).
In the current year, the Group disposed of certain listed RAFE  AEEHEREEOAA
equity securities with carrying amount of approximately R¥14,675,0007T (16& 717,085,100
RMB14,675,000 (equivalent to HK$17,085,100), with the BIT)ME T EMRAES - KELHA
consideration of approximately RMB13,682,000 (equivalent R #13,682,0007T (#8&E7415,929,150
to HK$15,929,150). A loss on disposal of approximately BIT) o HEEEAARK993,0007T
RMB993,000 (equivalent to HK$1,155,950) has been (& 71,155,9508 7T ) E R AR F EHI
recognised in profit or loss for the current year. B TER ©
As at 31 December 2015, the held-for-trading investments M2015F12A31H » HIEEEKRER
has been pledged as security under the margin securities THE - (EATERESFRPAEHM -
account.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. FBRER
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREEFTT
Trade receivables FEUBR SR 145,701 186,701
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts L R - =
145,701 186,701

Annual Report 2016
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. BEWERZ)
The Group has not specified the credit period to its trade AEETESEESEFPEERE
customer. The following is an aged analysis of trade By o IR BARRF AR R B B 17 5% B A7
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented (KREBZWATRERBE) M EIKER
based on the repurchase agreement at the end of the OB RERE) NRER DT B R
reporting period, which approximated the respective ™~
revenue recognition date:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
0-30 days 0Z230K 126,300
31-60 days 31ZE60K - -
61-90 days 61Z90K - -
Over 90 days 90 KA £ 73,701 60,401
145,701 186,701
All of the trade receivables were related to a customer A TEWBR N A A R T iR 28 e 3
of construction of infrastructure and development of BROP—EZEEAEM - ILEFE AT
properties segment. This customer was a stated-owned BEHEE X HEAEEEZEERAE
enterprise located in the PRC and has long-term business HRER - NEBWESNEA DX
relationship with the Group. The Group has not specified EEETEESH  MENAERER
the credit period to this stated-owned enterprise customer B E2016F12A3MBIEFEFEBE
and given that the Group has received amounting to FRITAZEULE P WED AR
approximately RMB 113,000,000 from this customer by 113,000,000 * EFRA * 12016
way of direct bank payment during the year ended 31 FN2015F12 A31 B ER IR S
December 2016, the Directors considered that none of the PEXEREHRDEEE  BAEELR
balance due from this stated-owned enterprise customer B - M20164F &% 2015912 A 31
has been past due as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 and B AEBUWERZSEEHREETM
no impairment is required. The Group does not hold any S o
collateral over these balances as at 31 December 2016 and
2015.
201653 BHEAABRERGERLT 151
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28.

29.

152

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash are mainly denominated in
RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from
0.01% to 0.35% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.
The bank balances are deposited in creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

ASSETS/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 15 March 2016, Shenzhen Shen He, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the disposal
agreement with an independent third party (the “Buyer”),
whereby the Buyer has conditionally agreed to purchase
and Shenzhen Shen He has conditionally agreed to sell the
entire issued share capital of Cheng He Chuang Jian at the
consideration of RMB44,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The
principal activity of Cheng He Chuang Jian is investment
holding.

As at 31 December 2016, the disposal has not completed
and the amount of RMB24,000,000 represented the
refundable deposit received from the Buyer.

The assets and liabilities attributable to Cheng He Chuang
Jian, which is expected to be sold within twelve months
after the reporting date, have been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position (see below).
The net proceeds of disposal are expected to equal to the
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities
and accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

Annual Report 2016

28.
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BITERRAS
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RITEBRBRFFEFHAMBNEN T
0.01% 2 0.35% (20154F : 0.01% =
0.35% )T EFI B o SRITARTRITH
RN B EERIFMRTT

BoRSIBFEREHREMHERNE
& faff

R2016%3 8158 » FILAA A 7
ZEMRBRAR))EBYE=/(EH])
R HEWE - B EFEKER
EBEEMAINLANE GERE LS
BRIEEHEBITRA  REAAR
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MN2016512 318 » HEHAKTAHK -
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29. ASSETS/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS 29, HoESRANENIERENS

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Continued) g/ﬁﬁ(ﬁ%}
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Cheng He SERFBEHENNEAIZEZE
Chuang Jian classified as held for sale are as follows: BERBERAT
2016
RMB’000
AR®TT
Bank balance and cash RITAER IR S 878
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 50,000
Total assets classified as held for sale DERFEHENREE 50,878
Other payables and accruals and HifEN R R EAER RS R
total liabilities classified as held for sale FEHENEAE 6,870

30. TRADE PAYABLES 30, FE{TEERR
Trade payables represented construction payables on
construction comprises construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on
project progress measured by the Group. The suppliers
have not specified the credit period granted to the Group.

ENER R EEAFAX BREEE
AREMEBBBRX - HREAE
Bt EMEBEEN - HEFLE
BTArEBECERES -

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the

~ S B TAER A k < Eo - s
end of the reporting period: AR R0 R 5 HAR 0 FE A B A Pl e

A
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBTT

Within 90 days 90AKN 36,349 22,407
Over 90 days 90KRIA £ 70,769 85,361
107,118 107,768

20165 EEARREROERAT 153 .
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31.

32.

154

OTHER BORROWINGS

31.

Secured:

S

Margin securities accounts

Carrying amount repayable within one year

HFRESFRP

As at 31 December 2015, approximately RMB15,333,000
represented the margin value in broker’'s account.
The margin value will be charged at 9% per annum.
The borrowings was secured by the held-for-trading
investments and ARHL Convertible Bonds with carrying

values of RMB14,637,000 and RMB48,883,000 as at 31

ARN—FABENREE -

Hibh &
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
- 15,333
15,333
M2015F 12 A31H » K AR

15,333,000 TR E &L ERP AR EE ©
FFREBIZFFEI%ETE o EFAR
2015F 12 A3 HERAED fl A AREK
14,637,0007T & A K #5 48,883,000 7T
RIS IEE B E R AT AR E S 1ER IR o

December 2015, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, issued and

fully paid:
— Domestic shares of
RMB1 each
At 1 January
Issue of Domestic
Shares (Note a)

At 31 December

— Hshares of
RMB1 each
At 1 January
Issue of H Shares
(Note b)

At 31 December

Total

32. B®&
2016 2015
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bip&E & R k|
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
EE BRTR
2RE :
—SREEARK
1T E R
M A1E 720,000,000 720,000 600,000,000 600,000
BITAER
(Kizza) 144,000,000 144,000 120,000,000 120,000
M12A31H 864,000,000 864,000 720,000,000 720,000
—SREEARE
1TCRIHAR
1 A1H 504,480,000 504,480 420,400,000 420,400
BITHRR
(K1th) 100,896,000 100,896 84,080,000 84,080
M12A31H 605,376,000 605,376 504,480,000 504,480
@it 1,469,376,000 1,469,376  1,224,480,000 1,224,430
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a

On 23 February 2016, the Company completed the issuance
of 144,000,000 Domestic Shares at the price of RMB1 per
share under the general mandate. Details of the issuance
has been disclosed in the Company’s announcement date
18 December 2015 and 25 February 2016, respectively. The
new Domestic Shares rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with the existing Domestic Shares and
H-Shares.

On 11 February 2016, the Company and the placing agent,
completed the placing of the total of 100,896,000 H-Shares
at the price of RMB1 per share (equivalent to HK$1.19)
under the general mandate. Details of the placing has been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 19 January
2016 and 11 February 2016, respectively. The new H-Shares
rank pari passu in all respects among themselves and with the
existing Domestic Shares and H-Shares.

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

B (&)

(a) 201692 230 * ARFTERIBE
— R IR H#EE£ 17 144,000,000 A% & A% A
RE1THANER - BEARITHFES
HRARFHED R A2015F12 8
18H K2016%E2 A25 B A% %55
FRERES B REEREGANERKHE
&R EZHRERETR -

(b) R2016F2 8118 » AR EHRE
EREBETHKRBE —REERZT
100,896,000 % BB A R#E1T(FEE
MB1.19587T) BHAR - BRAELEFEM
BN ARAT B ES B A201641
A198 %2016F2A11BMAE ° %
EHHR S B RERFAERRHER
EEFEEERSER -

JFZRRiER

Share of
net assets of
of subsidiary

SEREBLT

BRE
RMB’000
AR®TR

At 1 January 2015
Share of profit for the year

At 31 December 2015

M2015F1 A1H
21 A A

201512 A31H -

Issuance of share capital upon capital contribution  FJEERFEEITARAS 80,990
Share of other comprehensive income DG EALEEWRA 475
Share of profit for the year DEF A& F 3,802
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12 8318 85,267

On 23 December 2015, Kingma Overseas Investment
Development Corporation Limited (“Kingma Overseas”)
entered into the capital contribution agreement with
Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited, pursuant to which
each of the parties agreed to make capital contribution
of HK$109,990,000 and HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB80,990,000) respectively to Chung
Hwa Finance Limited (“Chung Hwa Finance”) (“Capital
Contribution”). Details of the Capital Contribution has
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23
December 2015.

2016

EELORBRROARAE

2015912 523 H © © B/EIMEE
BRAERAA([€E/IN) EPERE
BEEBAERARTERZE &5
ZSEREAFECEER AR
EZE )5 REE 109,990,000 T
1290,000,000/8 7T (HE & R KA R
80,990,000 T)([VEFEEIE]) - BREE
BEEEMFBRAARBEA20154F
12 A23B WA EHRHEE -
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33.

34.

156

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

The Capital Contribution was completed on 18 March
2016. Upon completion of the Capital Contribution,
the issued share capital of Chung Hwa Finance will be
increased to HK$200,000,000 and Chung Hwa Finance
will be owned as to 55% and 45% by Kingma Overseas
and Chung Hwa Finance Holding Limited respectively.
Chung Hwa Finance will continue to be a subsidiary of the
Company.

According to the capital contribution agreement, Chung
Hwa Finance will declare and distribute cash dividend
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Special Dividend"”) to the existing shareholder prior to the
completion of Capital Contribution. Chung Hwa Finance
Holdings Limited acknowledges that the Company is going
to propose such declaration and distribution of the Special
Dividend and Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited will
not be entitled to the Special Dividend in any event.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET
The following is the major deferred tax asset recognised

and the movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

33.

34,

FEiERRiED (2)

EEEEDN20165E3 A18H Ak ©
REREASBIERE  RESEEET
% 7K #8348 22 200,000,000/ 7T © S
EBSRHEE 8T ECESEE
AR A A 55% K 45% ° Etﬂi =B
WS B Ve A AN A BT E A A

BB FE W - PEEESRTHAE
EEHAMWRARRESE R DRTEZE
201512 A31 B IEB B F E AR /%
E(UHEJ Bl HEFEEEAR

NEER  RARETEZRTIR K
RN BRFHIRE  MTEEERHE

BERABEEMBER T HEEZHR
BB, -

L‘AT%E&EWE’JEKLLTRIE,%JZ&
HRAFEBEFENEEBER

Temporary

difference

TrrER

RMB’000

ARETTT

At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 818 — 2,112
Charge to profit or loss (Note 71) M aEz=aE11) (758)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A318 1,354
Charge to profit or loss (Note 11) W aEs(E11) (1,354)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 H431H -

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against
its future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets relating to
unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

34.

35.

2016

DEFERRED TAX ASSET (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had estimated unused tax losses of approximately
RMB12,232,000 (2015: RMB11,216,000) and
approximately of HK$13,792,000 (2015: HK$10,335,000)
available for offset against future profits in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. The tax losses
arising from the PRC operations expire five years after the
relevant accounting year end. The tax losses arising from
other operations do not expire under current tax legislation
in the relevant tax jurisdiction.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group maintains various retirement schemes for
its employees. The retirement scheme for employees of
the PRC office is a mandatory central pension scheme
organised by the PRC government, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions
made are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and charged as expenses when the employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contribution.
The employer contributions vest fully once they are made.
The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in fund under the control of trustees. The Company
contributes 5% (2015: 5%) of relevant payroll costs,
capped at HK$1,500 (2015: HK$1,500) per month, to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, in which contribution is
matched by employees.

EELORARRROARAR

34,

35.

BERRAE(E)

RERERR - AL B A I8
KB B R R s F B9 1d R B) A
HEED R4 AR 12,232,000 7T
(20154 : AR#11,216,0007T) K4
13,792,000 7T(2015% : 10,335,000
BIT) o AR ARBETERIRICEFR » K
R AR ARGEEERELEHRIEE
B hEEREENHEEEREH
SRt FEEBATER o BEMERE
ERMBSEEERBE B AERD
WITBETGEm °

RFREFIEER

NEEAHREES R TREERKREF
e AEERFRIBERAERE
828 —T8 M BB TFAES 285
PORIREHE]  ZEtBIZEERAE
B BESHAGTER - fHRIDIRAER
BEFM AN LET  YHNMESIR
BEHA ZZZSERZ RISETIE
Mk - BEEHR—BEL  F2
HREEAMAE AKBAEESBERIEE
BREERVBESTE - FEMNEE
HFER—ERITEALRFNES > &
REBEESHAIFE - ARRHES
YA AYRESTEIREBRTE K
AN5% (20154 : 5% )fER R - LR
71,5008 7T (20154 : 1,500 7T) °
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REMB|RMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE2016F12A318ILFE

36. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the year =IERAEK
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms at one year
(2015: one to two years). None of the leases included
contingent rentals and terms of renewal were established
in the leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

FARBEEHE

EEHR
FREFESREA
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARMETT
207 427

REHEFAAKEREE TR T2
ENmEE - HORBTHSEHS
RE—F(2015%F - —EWF) - HiE
HHBREAAE S RERTGRREL

PETE -

RBER - NEERBETAHHE
SHAONTIEHAZ KRR KEEN
HEAEMT

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years inclusive EoEE RS
(BEERME)

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
149 160

- 139

149 299
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 37. BEKIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the REEER - NEEFUATEREAE

following capital commitment:

Capital expenditure contracted for but not R F5I=IERIE 5] 48 4

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

provided in the consolidated financial RRERA BT HREA
statements in respect of: BENEARRY
(i) Capital contribution to Chung () MAPESE
Hwa Finance AE - ©3},525
(i) Capital contribution to Shenzhen (i) MFEINRE
Zhonghe AE - 1,000
(iii)y Capital contribution to Guangzhou (i) MEMNNSEIE
Xiaoma Chuang Fu Hu Lian Wang Xinxi BB (S B AR
Fuwu Company Limited* BRARNEE 50,000 =
(iv) Acquisition of 30% equity interest of  (iv) WG EEME30%
Hai Yue Real Estate (Note 23) K (H1at23) - 20,000
(v) Acquisition of properties (Note 22) () WEEWIZE(H15E22) 42,800 -
(vi) Establish a joint venture in PRC (Notea)  (vi) MABIRL I & &b
(Ktata) 4,000 —
96,800 114,525
Note a: On 4 February 2016, Shenzhen Tonghe Chuangjian fizFa : R2016FE2 848 @ FYmEE &l

Investment Development Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shenzhen Galaxy Real Estate
Development Company Limited* has jointly established a
joint venture namely Shenzhen Xingma Hongyun Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd* in the PRC (the “PRC Joint Venture”)
with the registered capital of RMB10,000,000. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the PRC Joint Venture has
not commenced any business or investment yet. Details of
the PRC Joint Venture is set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 February 2016.

REBRRERETLAR(ARAREE
WA m]) BRI 27 B E 2
BRAFRFBEKERKILE EBER
NTESFRERMEREERA A
([PEEERE]  FHEXBAR
#10,000,0007T ° # E=201645 12 A
NALFE  FREEERENARRA
ERIEBHIEE - BRATRHESE RS
WS - BREAR R A A2016F
2A18EMRE ©

@ English name for identification only. o R A BEMRES -
38.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. RAESLXH

(@) During the years ended 31 December 2016 and (@) & 220164 &2015%F 12 A 31
2015, the identified related party which has HIEFE BEAEBEETRS
transaction with the Group was as follows: MEHRIREERIT
Name of the Company Relationships with the Company
fERB HMENTRIBE
Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited A non-controlling interest of the Company
FEECEEEGRAR AR BIFEE IR AR
Shishi Shen Guo Tou An associate of the Company
BRI ZANNE )l t/N

20165 BHEARREROGERAEF
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38.

(a) (Continued)

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transaction with related party:

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

REFXH(Z)
@ (#&)

P - A B SRR AT A
TR :

MESER

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT

ZHHH
Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Management fee and
Limited referral fee expenses
PEEEEEERAR ERENNABERX

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were negotiated on a normal
commercial terms and conditions that would be
available to third party.

At the end of the reporting period, the balances of
related parties are as follows:

Name of related party

7,921 =

EERR LARZNRE=
77 TS O IE 5 7 5 R S 16
THE£ERS ©

REIEHR - BIET WA

5

_|

MEH B8

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBTT

Amount due from an associate JE WSt & A Bl 5RIE
— Shishi Shen Guo Tou — AR 375 -
Amount due from a non-controlling
interest JFE U FEE AR AR 3R 508
— Chung Hwa Finance Holdings —HhEFEEE
Limited BRAF 49,295 -

Note:  The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

Mt - EHRREER - REWAR

SR -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38.

(b)

2016

Compensation of Directors and key
management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members
of key management during the years were as
follows:

MEHXR(#E)
(b) ESEREFEEEARNFTH

FR EZTREMETEEEA
SHFMMT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTT

Short-term benefits EHEEF
Contributions to
retirement benefits schemes R AT IR

The remuneration of Directors and key executives
are determined by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

EELORBRROARAE

1,441 1,681

95 113

1,536 1,794

EERERITRABNEM

RERMBEARE KT RE B
MEEeERE -
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. MEBLATFEFIS
General information of subsidiaries EEHELATN—BIH
Particulars of the subsidiaries held by the Company at 31 20164 20154512 A31 B AR T
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: BHHBATMEREERNT
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid-up/issued Proportion voting
registration/ (Class of registered ownership interest power held by~ Principal
Name of subsidiary operation shares held capital held by the Company the Company  activities
e/
B/ B#R /BfTH LRRR
HELFER ERME FEROEN EREE FLTRARARRRLA REERA  XERE
Directly Indirectly
B L}
- Ed - Kl
Zhongfang Chaozhou PRC NA  RMB150,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Property
M ﬁF el AEE development
150,000,007 VESHE
Chaozhou Construction and PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
Development Company Limited* HE TEf ARE The¥
AN e RFEEARAR 1,000,007
Bejing Shen Shang PRC A RMBT,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
TREE il 0l ARE b
1,000,007
Shenzhen Shen Wu Investment & PRC N/A RMB1,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
Development Company Limited* B TER AR TEeE
MImLRERRERAR 1,000,0007C
Shenzhen Shen He PRC N/A RMB1,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
A ] NER N g%
1,000,007
Shenzhen Shen Shang Chuang PRC A RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
Jian Investment Development i NER NG fmex
Company Limited* 1,000,0007
MBI RERRERAT
Shenzhen National Asia Fund PRC N/A RMB10,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
Management Limited* Gl NER AEE Irex
MTERENE S ERERAT 10,000,000
Cheng He Chuang Jian PRC WA RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Investment
VEE] il el N holding
1,000,0007C T
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. MEBLATESZ)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) ERMEATN—BEE (&)
Place of Proportion of

incorporation/ Paid-up/issued Proportion voting

registration/ Class of registered ownership interest power held by Principal
Name of subsidiary operation  shares held capital held by the Company the Company activities

e/
Big/ BHR /B FLERE
HELTRE BRuE FRRGEN T2 FLTRRRRRRGLA RRELA  EERE
Directly Indirectly
B itk
m 2015 m 2015 m 2015
Shenzhen Zhonghe PRC A RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
IR ] AR ARE E
1,000,007

Shenzhen Shenlian Investment PRC N/A RMB1,000,000  100% - - - 100% - Investment
Development Company Limited* h NER ARH# management
(Note ) 1,000,007 and consulting

MITIRREERARAR REEREN
(i)

Shenzhen Tong He Chuangjian PRC A RMB1,000,000 - - 100% - 100% = Investment
Investment Development m TER ARH holding
Company Limited* (Note j) 1,000,000 RERR

MR ERRELR
EREERA ML)

Tai He Chuang Jian (Note i) PRC NA  RMB1,000,000 - - 100% - 100% - Investment

FatlRML) i 0l ARE holding

1,000,0007C RERR

Guangzhou Xiaoma Chuang Fu Hu PRC N/A RMB50,000,000 - - 100% - 100% - Online technology
Lian Wang Xinxi Fuwu Company i TER ARE development
Limited* (Note i and Note i) 50,000,0007C L U

M EEZEREEERE
BRARBRN )

Shenzhen Ju Sheng Chuang Jian PRC A RMB1,000,000 - - 100% - 100% = Investment
Investment and Development i NER AEE holding
Limited* (“Ju Sheng Chuang 1,000,007 REZK
Jian") (Note f)

MIMERERRERRERAT
(ZZ80)Hz)

Kingma Overseas HK Ordinary US$20,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Securities

258 &k Lk 2000057 Investment

ErRE
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. MEBLATESZ)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) BEHEMBATIN—RBEIE (&)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid-up/issued Proportion voting
registration/ Class of registered ownership interest power held by~ Principal
Name of subsidiary operation  shares held capital held by the Company the Company activities
e/
B/ BHR /B FLERE
HELTRE BRuE FRRGEN T2 FLTRRRRREGLA RRELA  EERE
Directly Indirectly
B ik
Nl 015 m 2015 m 2015
Chung Hwa Finance HK Ordinary  HKD200,000,000 - - 5%  100%  100%  100% Creditbusiness
hEEE &% EHR  200,000,000%7 FEXH
Sichuang Overseas HK Ordinary US$20,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Securities
) 305 Lk 2000057 investment
EHRE
Kingma International Ltd. BVI Ordinary Us§1 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
HARARAR EERAES LBk B3 B
Sichuang International Ltd. BVI Ordinary USs1 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
BEERERAR AERAHES LRk E3 L
Modern Key International Limited BVI Ordinary US$1,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
("Moder Key") ZERAES Bk 1,000%7 ez
REERARAR(RE])
& English name for identification only * EX ARG EEEER

All of the above subsidiaries are limited company which
the places of operations are the same as their places of

incorporation.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period or at any

time during the year.

Notes:

(i) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31

December 2016.

(i) The registered capital of RMB50,000,000 has not been paid

up to 31 December 2016.
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(ii)

REZE2016F12 A31H IEFE 5%
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39.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. MEBABEE &)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have HEEXFERESHIFEZEREL
material non-controlling interests Gil:ok3
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREVNAEEHEE ERFERER
subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling RISER BB A RRIFES ¢
interests:
Place of
incorporation
and principal Proportion of ownership
place of interest and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
ERALBER FARRANENAN
WELE R TEERUG HARAFELH AREFHRERNET RiFARER

2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AERTR EUNSAVHN ARRTR NS

Chung Hwa Finance HK 45% = 3,802 - 85,267 -
hERE 05
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BBEANEEHAE B A SRR EZSAM
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set BARINMIEER R EZSHTI T - A
out below. The summarised financial information below TR & KL E 45 R B A A Rl fE AR
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. IR %S -
Chung Hwa Finance hEEH
2016
RMB’000
AR®TT
Current assets MBNEE 455,294
Non-current assets JEMENEE 34
Current liabilities ik )=V (254,648)
Non-current liabilities SEMENEE -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNREEE ANEIEER 115,413

Non-controlling interests of

Chung Hwa Finance (Note) RESER IR ER (A7) 85,267
Note:  As per the capital contribution agreement, non-controlling Mt . BEBEFEWRZ  FERESETED
interest will not share the pre-acquisition reserve of 1t U B B f6 4 49 A R 511,198,000
approximately RMB11,198,000. No gain or loss on a deemed JC ° BHER AR EMIERE EERT

disposal have been recognised in equity (Note 33). TR (M7F33) °
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Chung Hwa Finance (Continued)

39. MREBATEFSE)

PEER(E)

Revenue
Expenses
Profit for the year

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of Chung Hwa Finance

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income attributable to
the non-controlling interests of
Chung Hwa Finance

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the Company
Total comprehensive income attributable to
the non-controlling interests of
Chung Hwa Finance

Total comprehensive income for the year

YA

FAsZ

FAERF

ARBHER AEIE T
RS E IR AR (G T

FAE A

ARREAANBEEMBEEEA

REEEIFERERIE
HEMEEEA

FARAEMEEEA

AREHEE AEBEZEBALR

REEEIHERERE
(EEAEE ONED

FAEZERALRE

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net cash inflow
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REEEH M HFEE
RERSHE MM FHE
BERPHESMAFE

RERAFE

Year ended
31 December
2016
#HFE20165F

12A31H
LLFE
RMB’000
AR®TT

38,467
(30,019)
8,448

4,646

3,802

8,448

580

475

1,055

5,226

4,277

9,503

Year ended
31 December
2016

B E2016F

12A31H
LLFE
RMB’000

AR®TT

98,430

40,526

139,760

804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12A318ILFE

40.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Deposit paid for acquisition of

investment

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a subsidiary
Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FREBEE
RHTB A RNRE
WA P H)

HEA

RENRE

JRE W B /o8 2 IR
HAb FEU R
RITREBERE

RENRR
HAGREf 51 B B
FE A~ — R B 2 B 50R
HIREE

RENEERE
WESE
-3
ELEN

it

o

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 27 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing Ming
IRuYEA

Director

EZ

EELORBRROARAE

E L FIMEE R &R i
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR®TT ARETTT
(@) 194,688 193,688
32,000 =
226,688 193,688
(b) 822,022 614,167
- 8
833 2,833
822,855 617,008
2,167 1,830
© 54,079 60,877
4,959 4,799
61,205 67,506
761,650 549,502
988,338 743,190
1,469,376 1,224,480
(@) (481,038) (481,290)
988,338 743,190

AARMPHERALER  KEETER
20173 A27 Bz E R IRER L - I

HTIEEAREE

Deng Xiao Gang
ERREH

Director

EF
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40.

168

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

40. FLXFMBRARREMEZ)

Notes: Hiat -
@) Investments in subsidiaries (a) REBARMNRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARMTIT
Unlisted shares, at cost SEETRRG - BAAR 194,698 193,698
Less: Accumulated impairment allowance W RETRELER (10) (10)
194,688 193,688
(b) Apart from the amount due from Zhongfang Chaozhou, the (b) BT AR B RN FRIE - AR ek E G
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest - ERH B R RRE A RES -
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment for both years. B BYWERFERERS -
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the amount due from 720164 &% 2015612 A31H - [EIR
Zhongfang Chaozhou is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is FEBMNFIEREER £8 - WA
repayable within one year. R—FREE -
(0 The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest (0) BN —RM B AR ZIB AR - &
bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment. S AW EEAERA o
(d) Reserves (d) i
Statutory
Share surplus Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
EERER
BFRE LW|e RHBR #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTT
(Note i) (Note i)
(Hati) (Biatii)
At 1 January 2015 1201561818 323,258 103,215 (900,841) (474,368)
Loss for the year, representing total FNEE
comprehensive expense for the year REFEAZMEFAZLE - - (6,090) (6,090)
Transaction costs attributable to
issuance of H-shares BATHARABRAZZ 5 AR (832) = = (832)
At 31 December 2015 and 20156128318 &
1 January 2016 20161A1R 322,426 103215 (906931)  (481,290)
Profit for the year, representing total  EREF] - (KRER
comprehensive expense for the year 2 E R X &5 - - 2,202 2,202
Transaction costs attributable to
issuance of shares BT ABRARR 2R (1,950) = = (1,950)
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 320,476 103,215 (904,729) (481,038)
Notes: Hiat -
(i) Share premium (0) P& (B
Share premium comprises surplus between the value AR E BN ERFEE
of net assets acquired and the nominal value of state BEMARREARD G
shares issued as a result of the incorporation of the PR A Bl sE M B Sz T 31T Y
Company as a joint stock limited company and the BREEZFENRS AR
share premium from the issuance of H-shares. BATHRRFTE AR AR (B o
(ii) Statutory surplus reserve (ii) EEEBRRES

The Company is required to set aside 10% of its
profit after taxation prepared in accordance with
the PRC accounting regulations to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
their respective paid up capital or registered capital,
where further appropriation will be at the Directors’
recommendation. Such reserve can be used to
reduce any losses incurred or to increase the capital.
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41.  EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

2016

On 16 January 2017, Chung Hwa Finance, a
subsidiary of the Company, has pass the special
resolution to approve the proposed reduction
of its share capital from HK$200,000,000 to
HK$50,000,000 (the “Capital Reduction”). Upon
completion of the Capital Reduction on 21 February
2016, the issued share capital of Chung Hwa
Finance will be decreased to HK$50,000,000
while the number of issued shares will remain
unchanged. Chung Hwa Finance will be remained
owned as to 55% by Kingma Overseas and 45% by
Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited respectively.
Details of the Capital Reduction has been disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 23 January
2017.

On 3 March 2017, the conditions precedent of
the acquisition agreement of Hai Yue Proposed
Acquisition have been fulfilled and the completion
took place on 3 March 2017. Details of the
completion of acquisition has been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement date 3 March 2017.

On 10 March 2017, the Vendor and the Company
entered into the termination agreement to
terminate the acquisition of 28% equity interest in
Shenzhen Hui Ye Micro Lending with immediate
effect. The Vendor has refunded the consideration
received of RMB32,000,000 to Shenzhen Shen He,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 10
March 2017.

On 10 March 2017, Ju Sheng Chuang Jian,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the gold investment agreements
with Shenzhen Fu Yu Man Trading Company
Limited* and Shenzhen Hua Xin Chen Trading
Company Limited* respectively. Pursuant to the
gold investment agreements, Ju Sheng Chuang
Jian agreed to invest in standard gold in AU99.99
fineness with the total investment amount of
RMB54,620,000.
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41.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(e)

On 14 March 2017, Modern Key, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into a
non-legally binding letter of intent (the “Letter of
Intent”) with BGA China Technology Company
Limited (“"BGA China"”). Pursuant to the Letter
of Intent, it is proposed that Modern Key will
conditionally acquire not less than 20% equity
interest of BGA China. Details of the potential
acquisition has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 March 2017.

On 17 March 2017, the Board has passed a
resolution to increase the registered capital of
Zhongfang Chaozhou from RMB150,000,000
to RMB400,000,000, The purpose for the
capital increase is to enhance the capital base of
Zhongfang Chaozhou as well as strengthen its
infrastructure and construction business in the PRC.
As at the date of this report, the capital increase is
still in progress.

On 20 January 2017, the Company has received
a formal approval dated 11 January 2017 from
China Securities Regulatory Commission (the
“CSRC") that the Company is approved to place no
more than 121,075,200 new H-Shares (the “New
H-Shares”), under the General Mandate 2016 (the
“Placing”). The formal approval will expire after
twelve months upon the date of approval. Details
of the Placing has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 20 January 2017.
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Financial Summary

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Revenue

Sales taxes on turnover

Cost of sales

Other income

Gain on disposal of assets and
liabilities classified
as held for sale

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in

respect of interest in an associate

Finance cost
Exchange gain
Loss on disposal of convertible

installments designed as financial
asset as fair value through profit

or loss
Fair value change on

convertible instruments designed

as financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss
Fair value change on
contingent consideration
Gain (loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries, net
Fair value change on
held-for-trading investments
Fair value loss on step
acquisition of a subsidiary
Fair value change of
investment properties, net
(Loss) gain on disposal of held-for-
trading investments
Administrative and other operating
expenses
Share of profit of an associate

Profit before tax
Income tax expenses

Profit (loss) for the year
Non-controlling interests

Profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

2016

WA
BREWEN
EESEN
LN
HEDBRRHE
HEZBER
Afa e

MAEHER HERR

il YNl it
RIERE

FIAA

b 54 Mt

REREAREEFARS
MR FEERM AR TA
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HEREDABEFARR
NI AR AR TA

R4 EES

HIARELAEBEE
HEMBARRE
(BHR) 38
HFREREZ
DhfEER
BHWE-REHNBERF
ZBAEEER
REMERNEER
e
HEREERREN
(Bt Has

TREEME SRS
i3l NGl

FRIRATRR
FERRX

FARRH(BR)
FEER

FATRMA AR
&R (ER)

EELORBRROARAE

o =g k=%

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
VAN RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
IN:L Ao ARETT  ARETT ARE®ETT AR%ETR
108,370 311,400 86,248 336,800 10,160
(468) (765) (431) (1,679) (554)
(78,707)  (293,945) (80,932)  (303,863) (792)
538 2,077 2,042 545 121

- - 45,677 - -
(20,000) - - - -
(3,561) - - - -
(51) (531) - - -
16,898 11,578 - - -
(1,141) - - - -
- 1,084 - - -

- - - - 30,500

- - 3 - (1,547)

(30) (7,917) - (66) -

- - - - (48)

- - - - 800

(993) (9,377) (561) (161) -
(8,864) (9,880) (6,830) (14,088) (5,637)
M - - - -
12,032 3,724 45,216 17,488 33,003
(5,881) (6,497) (1,155) (5,849) (5,877)
6,151 (2,773) 44,061 11,639 27,126
3,802 - - - -
2,349 (2,773) 44,061 11,639 27,126
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Financial Summary

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Capital and reserves:
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable
to owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Non-current liabilities

Total equity

172

REeMERLE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

NG LSl ARETT ARETRE ARETRT ARETT

ERBEE 516,734 334,997 127,209 107,133 76,486

MENEE 755,668 588,349 642,273 1,226,012 1,133,161

REARE (151,734) (134,624) (181,551) (789,455) (674,744)

REEE T 603,934 453,725 460,722 436,557 458,417

BERERTDAR 1,120,668 788,722 587,931 543,690 534,903
BERRRHE

PR 1,469,376 1,224,480 1,020,400 1,020,400 1,020,400

il (433,975) (435,758) (432,469) (476,710) (488,297)
ZA/NCIEZ 2N

FE( R 1,035,401 788,722 587,931 543,690 532,103

FEIER R B 85,267 - _ _ _

ERBAE - = = = 2,800

B 1,120,668 788,722 587,931 543,690 534,903
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Glossary

HERAAR

In this report (other than the Financial Statements), unless the RAFRE(HBERERBIN)  BXERRBA
context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have 5 ATrAZAENUTERE -

the following respective meanings.

“2015 Corresponding Period”

[20154F[E) A |

“2016 Financial Year”

[2016F AR FE |

“Articles”
[RE)ERE]

“Board”

[EEg]

“Company”

(A7l

“Cheng He Chuang Jian”

&8I ]

“Chung Hwa Finance”
[hERFE

"CSRC”

PEEEE

“Director(s)”

[E%]

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BZ2015F12A31HIEFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F12A31HIEFE

The Articles of the Company
RATHRAIER

the board of Directors

=g

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited*
&S NRERROARAE

Shenzhen Cheng He Chuang Jian Investment and Development Company
Limited
RYITWA BRI EERERAA

Chung Hwa Finance Limited (formerly known as Newpont Finance Limited), a
licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance
RECEERAF(FIBFAEEERAR) - RBE(GREAGHDOEBFIER
fBA

China Securities Regulatory Commission
TRESEEEEZE®

the directors of the Company

KARES



Glossary

HERAAR

“Domestic Shares”
[RER

“General Mandate 2015"

[2015—AA%HE |

“General Mandate 2016"

[2016—MZHHE |

“Group”
[AREE |

“Hai Yue Real Estate”

[ B E |

“Hong Kong”
[&E]

“H-Shares”

[HAx ]

174

domestic shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for in RMB

AARBADEREEARKE I THONER - UARE RS

the general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2014, pursuant to which the
Directors are authorised to allot, issue and deal with each of the H-Shares and
Domestic Shares with an aggregate nominal amount of up to but not exceeding
20% of the then aggregate nominal amount of H-Shares and Domestic Shares,
respectively

RARTF2014F6 A27 B EBITHRRBAFA® LERRE TEFHN —REFE
Bt EFERERE  BOREEAHESSETBBHRRAERERE
[ {E20%HIHAR &2 A& I

the general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2015, pursuant to which the
Directors are authorised to allot, issue and deal with each of the H-Shares and
Domestic Shares with an aggregate nominal amount of up to but not exceeding
20% of the then aggregate nominal amount of H-Shares and Domestic Shares,
respectively

MARF2015F6 A24ARTHRRBFAG LERRE TEEN —RITXE -
Bt EFERERE  BOTREBARESSETNEBHREAERERKE
EE20%HIHA& & A& i%

the Company and its subsidiaries

AR REMBAF]

Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development Company Limited*

BENEERHERRER DA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
hE ARAMBEEERITTEHR

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB1 each, all of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars
RRBRAREREEARBITTZIFEI EHINE EBAX - 2EIEBRPAER
ERABTREREE
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Glossary

HERAAR

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

o A

(B E=7 |

“Jinma Asset”

[ HEE]

“Kingma Overseas”

[& 585N

“Listing Rules”

[ AR A

“Model Code”
[1Z2E=rRl

“PRC”
[ Bl

“RMB”

[ARE ]

“SFO"

[ 355 K HAIE &0 ]
“Share”

[ Bcdn

“Shareholders”

[BCR

“Shenzhen Shen He”

[ARILA ]

20165 BHEARREROERLAAF

the independent third party(ies) who is/are, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry,
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

REH -6 BERE  RESFA  SELREE  BURAARIREBEEA
T(EER RN BELIE=H

Shenzhen Jinma Asset Management Company Limited
Ame[HEEERGRAR

Kingma Overseas Investment Development Corporate Limited

ERBIMERRER AT

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B R FTEE 5 L AR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

ERBETAEZTETESFRXZHIRLETA

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR AME

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

REAEEBARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the law of Hong Kong)
B MEEGRO(FBEPISTNE)

H-Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)
HA% X & B

holders of the H-Shares and Domestic Shares

HEX N R E R A A

Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*

ARITLME R ERRAR AT



Glossary

HERAAR

“Shishi Shen Guo Tou” Shishi Shen Guo Tou Commercial Property Company Limited*

[ A RREIF AMRBERERAEEBR AR

"Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ B3P BAMER AR AR

“Zhongfang Chaozhou” Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited*
[ &R ] RN ERBERR AR

“Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan a infrastructure construction project in Jing Nan Industrial Park, in Chaozhou
Industrial Park Project”
[ BB r TR EEA | RIS R TR E B R 2RI B

*  For identification purpose only — * (E5
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